Public Document Pack

Communities, Equality and Local Government
Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

5 July 2012 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F’
09:30 /

For further information please contact:

Policy: Marc Wyn Jones
Committee Clerk

029 2089 8120 / 029 2089 8120
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions

2. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the following business (09.30)
ltems 3 and 4

3. Technical Briefing Session on Homes for Wales: A White Paper for
Better Lives and Communities (09.30 - 10.30) (Pages 1 - 2)

4. Committee forward work programme - Budget Scrutiny (10.30 -
10.40)

5. Inquiry into the Welsh Government's historic environment policy

- Evidence session (10.40 - 11.15) (Pages 3 - 7)
CELG(4)-17-12 - Paper 1
Welsh Local Government Association

Peter Gomer, Interim Policy Adviser -Leisure, Culture, Tourism & Heritage

6. Consideration of the annual report by the Public Services

Ombudsman for Wales 2011-12 (11.15 - 12.00) (Pages 8 - 72)
CELG(4)-17-12 - Paper 2

Peter Tyndall, Public Services Ombudsman for Wales



Susan Hudson, Policy & Communications Manager

7. Papers to note (Pages 73 - 76)

CELG(4)-17-12 - Paper 3 - Evidence for Football inquiry - Submission from ITV
Wales (Page 77)

CELG(4) -17-12 - Paper 4 - Additional Information from the Welsh Local
Government Association as evidence for the Football inquiry (Pages 78 - 79)



Agenda Item 3

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Page 1



Agenda Iltem 5

Communities, Equality &
Local Government
Committee -

Inquiry into the Welsh

Government’s Historic
Environment Policy

XKk

July 2012 :"(C@ﬁ

~~~*

* Yk
WLGA «CLILC

Page 3



Historic Environment Policy
Welsh Local Government Association - July 2012

INTRODUCTION

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities in
Wales, and the three national park authorities, the three fire and rescue authorities,
and four police authorities are associate members.

2. It seeks to provide representation to local authorities within an emerging policy
framework that satisfies the key priorities of our members and delivers a broad range
of services that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they
serve.

3. The WLGA welcomes the opportunity to provide evidence to the Communities, Equality
and Local Government Committee on the Inquiry into the Welsh Government'’s historic
environment policy.

4. The WLGA response is based on the consultation questions

5. How appropriate and successful are the current systems employed by the Welsh
Government for protecting and managing the historic environment in Wales?
There is presently a myriad of legislation that local authorities and a number and
range of statutory organisations e.g. CADW, National Parks, CCW, Forestry
Commission, National Trust implement to protect, conserve and manage change to
the historic environment that have been in place for many years. The legislation is in
the main well managed and understood by professionals but due to the number of
partners involved can be open to different interpretation and decisions can often be
seen to lack clarity, incoherent and confusing to our citizens who are less familiar
with the legislation.

The WLGA therefore welcomes the inclusive approach to the proposed reform of the
legislation by including the many different organisations, individuals, and owners to
preserve and promote heritage in Wales through the horizon scanning and planning
workshops lead by CADW.

6. How well do the Welsh Government’s policies promote the historic environment in
Wales (for instance, in terms of interpretation, accessibility, attracting new audiences
and tourism)?

Page 4 2



There are some excellent examples of where key sites are well promoted, are
accessible with good interpretation facilities but due to the fact that there are a
number of different “owners” responsible for the sites there are not necessarily the
joined up approach to the marketing etc of an area to highlight all of the opportunities
available.

One issue that needs to be considered is the approach taken by the “owners” to
attract different age groups.

7. How well do the policies for the historic environment tie in with wider Welsh
Government policy objectives (such as the regeneration of communities)?
There are a number of areas that WLGA believe policies could be better aligned when
looking forward.
) Heritage Skills 30% of properties in Wales are pre 1919. There is a lack of a

skilled workforce to maintain and improve these buildings and at present there
is an expensive niche market which has developed to fill the void.

(i) Climate change ,in particular energy conservation and energy generation can
conflict with current history environment legislation

Therefore, just from these two examples it can be seen that policies around economic
development, sustainability and the historic environment need to be better aligned.

In Wales it is impossible not to consider the historic landscape / built environment
when determining regeneration policy and projects and therefore any policies on the
Historic environment will need to be aligned with the regeneration policy review being
undertaken by Welsh Government

8. What would be the advantages and disadvantages of merging the functions of the
Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales with the functions
of other organisations, including Cadw?

The WLGA is working with all of the Partners involved in the area of the Historic
environment on a scoping document on how collaboration can be improved in response
to the Simpson Compact agreement signed up to by local authorities and Welsh
government in December 2011. The scoping document is due to come forward in
September 2012. It is anticipated that this work and the work being undertaken on
horizon scanning with Cadw and all of the partners will better inform a future debate on
the advantages and disadvantages of any potential mergers.

Page 5



Historic Environment Policy
Welsh Local Government Association - July 2012

What role do local authorities and third sector organisations play in implementing the
Welsh Government’s historic environment policy and what support do they receive in
this respect?

In respect of the protection of the historic environment the main role that local
authorities undertake through the present policy is through the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Local authorities have to determine listed
building consent applications. Support is gained from CADW if the local authority
intends to approve an application and may recommend a “call in” of such applications
from those local planning authorities to whom this function has not been delegated.
The designation of conservation areas also brings some protection to some unlisted
buildings and areas within local authority boundaries.

The main issues faced by local authorities is that by their very nature conservation
areas will all be different and will have their own particularly difficult issues that have
to be dealt with.

Buildings at risk are a very difficult issue that local authorities have to deal with. In
many areas the buildings are owned by private owners and the local authorities
themselves and often they do not have the financial wherewithal to make the
necessary repairs.

It is also difficult for local authorities to intervene in cases where there is a need to
“stop the rot” as it is often not possible for local authorities to make the necessary
repairs and then to try to recover the cost from the owner.

There are however a number of many positive examples where local authorities have
and are working with the third sector to protect and enhance historic buildings. In
many cases the buildings have been transferred to the third sector where they are
then able to draw down funding which is not available to the local authorities
themselves.

Page 6 4



For further information please contact:

Peter Gomer
Interim Policy Officer - Leisure, Culture, Tourism & Heritage

Welsh Local Government Association
Local Government House

Drake walk

Cardiff

CF10 4LG

Tel: 02920 468648

peter.gomer@wiga.gov.uk

Page 7



Agenda Item 6

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12



The Annual Report 2011/12

of

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales
under paragraph 14 of Schedule 1
of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005

Page 9



Page 10



Annual Report 2011/12 mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLes NS

1 Introduction 6

2 Role of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 9

3 Complaints of maladministration and service failure M

4 Code of Conduct complaints 18
5 __________ | mprovmgpubtheerceDe[Nery _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 23
6 Govenanceand Accountabilty 2%
7 Other Activities 28
3 _________ E qua||ty|ssue535
Annex A Public Body Complaints: Public Interest Reports Case Summaries 38
Annex B Public Body Complaints: Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Public Body 49
Amexc ________ COdeofconductcomplamtsStatlstlcalBreakdownofoumomes ___________________________________________________________ 59

by Local Authority

Annex D Extract from Strategic Plan 2009710 to 2011/12: Vision, Values, Purposes and 64
Strategic Aims

Page 11



1. Introduction
e

| am pleased to introduce this, my fourth, annual report
since taking up my post as Ombudsman (and the sixth
annual report of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales following the introduction of the office in 2006).

The theme for this year’s annual report is ‘Improving
Access: Delivering Improvement’. This recognises

the work done to improve access to the complaints
procedures of bodies within my jurisdiction, other public
service providers, ombudsmen services (including my
own service) and other complaint handling schemes.
This has been done by raising awareness, making access
easier for people with protected characteristics and
through the Complaints Wales signposting service we
have provided more information on how people can
access advice and advocacy services to help them in
making their complaints.

Delivering improvement reflects our work in improving public service delivery in Wales, by ensuring
that the recommendations in my investigation reports are complied with, working with regulators to
ensure that the changes introduced are sustained and effective, and working to share the lessons from
those investigations with other public service providers,

The year 2011/12 was the final year of my three year Strategic Plan. The achievements against that Plan
have been substantial. As well as achieving the objectives set there have been other key achievements
that were unforeseen at the time of its initial development. Not least of these was the creation of
the Complaints Wales service. This innovative telephone and web service provides advice to those
members of the public who wish to complain about a public service but do not know how to do so.

| talk about this in greater detail later in this report, however, | am particularly pleased that as far as
the international community of ombudsmen is concerned, we in Wales appear to be a world leader in
offering such a service and many others are now contemplating going down the same road.

With regard to our core activity, the complaints | receive about public services continue to rise, being
13% up on the number received during 2010/11. The NHS Redress Measure was introduced on 1 April
201 and whilst this can account for some of this increase, it is only one factor. Concerningly, code of
conduct complaints rose by 49% and | address this at Section 4 of this report.

We have over the past three years made great strides in improving efficiency in the way we consider
complaints. In particular, | am pleased that although there has been a significant increase in the
enquiries and complaints that we receive, we have still managed to exceed our performance targets.
We also upgraded our complaints handling system during the course of the year with a view to
getting new technology to take some of the strain of some of the administrative tasks associated with



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

complaint handling. | will over this next year be looking to see what more we might be able to do to
improve efficiency. However, | am conscious that there is only so much that we can do in terms of
increasing productivity and streamlining our ways of working before the robustness and quality of work
is threatened.

During the past year, with the involvement of all my staff, | also produced my Strategic Plan for the
next three years. We will be working towards a slightly revised vision for the service over this period,
which is:
To put things right for users of public services and to drive improvement in those services
and in standards in public life using the learning from the complaints we consider.

Work was also undertaken during the course of the year to produce a Strategic Equality Plan. This

was in accordance with the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales)
Regulations 2011. Also under the specific duties, | am required to produce an equality annual report. |
have decided that it is most appropriate to do so within this Annual Report. Accordingly the activities
of my office in relation to equality and diversity issues are reported at Section 8.

We have also continued with activities to raise awareness of the office and its work. This included
holding a seminar for voluntary organisations in Wales. We also met with individual advice and
advocacy bodies during the year. It was also a particular pleasure to welcome Mrs Rosemary Butler,
the Assembly’s Presiding Officer, to the office. My staff appreciated the time that she gave to them and
the interest that she took in their individual roles.

| have previously reported on the work of a Welsh Government group that | was asked to chair, with
the task of developing a common complaints procedure. | was very pleased that the advice offered
to the First Minister on a Model Policy and Guidance for complaint handling for adoption by all
public service providers in Wales was issued by the Welsh Government in July 2011. | know that some
organisations, including the Welsh Government itself, have already put these new arrangements in
place and | will be taking a keen interest over the next year to see what steps other bodies within my
jurisdiction are taking to introduce the policy.

| have also welcomed the opportunity to be able to engage in discussions concerning the Social
Services (Wales) Bill. Whilst at the time of writing this is still out to consultation, | am pleased that
there is a proposal to bring private providers of care homes and domiciliary care agencies, as well as
independent palliative care services into my jurisdiction. In particular, it has seemed unjust to me that
a resident in a care home who has his or her care paid for by the state can complain to me about poor
care, while a resident who pays for their own stay at the same care home cannot.

During the course of the year | also reviewed the governance arrangements of my office. | took the
view that the office would better be able to demonstrate openness and transparency through the
creation of an Advisory Panel. An open recruitment process began at the end of the year, with a view
to members being appointed at the beginning of 201213,



In discussing governance, it would be remiss of me not to express here my appreciation for the work
that Mr Laurie Pavelin has undertaken as Chair of the Audit Committee. His six years in the position
came to an end on 31 March 2012. | have truly valued his wise counsel and support since the time | took
up the office of Ombudsman and thank him for it.

Finally, thanks must also go to my staff. Every individual within the office has an important role to play
in our success. The year has been one of innovation in terms of the introduction of a new service,
enhanced communication methods and information technology developments. However, it has been
equally notable for the continued hard work which has enabled us to stay on top of an ever-growing
workload - in this regard, with the financial constraints on public services, | cannot see the trend
reversing. | do not underestimate the challenges ahead of us.

/

Peter Tyndall
Ombudsman




2. The Role of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

The Public Service Ombudsman for Wales has two specific roles. The first is to consider complaints
made by members of the public that they have suffered hardship or injustice through maladministration
or service failure on the part of a body in my jurisdiction. The second role is to consider complaints
that members of local authorities have broken the Code of Conduct.

Complaints about public bodies in Wales

When considering complaints about public bodies in Wales, | look to see whether people have been
treated unfairly or inconsiderately, or have received a bad service through some fault on the part of the
public body providing it. The bodies that come within my jurisdiction are generally those that provide
services where responsibility for their provision has been devolved to Wales. More specifically, the
organisations | can look into include:

local government (both county and community councils);

the National Health Service (including GPs and dentists);

registered social landlords (housing associations);

and the Welsh Government, together with its sponsored bodies.

When considering complaints | look to see that public bodies have treated people fairly, considerately
and efficiently, and in accordance with the law and their own policies. If I uphold a complaint I will
recommend appropriate redress. The main approach | will take when recommending redress is,

where possible, to put the complainant (or the person who has suffered the injustice) back to the
position they would have been in if the maladministration had not occurred. Furthermore, if from my
investigation | see evidence of a systemic weakness, | will also make recommendations which aim to
reduce the likelihood of others being similarly affected in future.

Investigations are undertaken in private and are confidential. When | publish a report, it is anonymised
to protect (as far as possible without compromising the effectiveness of the report) the identity not
only of the complainant but also of other individuals involved.

The Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 provides two ways for reporting formally on my
investigations. Reports under section 16 of the Act are public interest reports and almost all are
published. The body concerned is obliged to give publicity to such a report at its own expense. Where
| do not consider the public interest requires a section 16 report (and provided the body concerned has
agreed to implement any recommendation | may have made) | can issue my findings under section 21
of the Act. Depending on the nature and complexity of the investigation this will sometimes be in the
format of a report, or it can take the form of a letter. There is no requirement on the body concerned
to publicise section 21 reports or letters.

Occasionally, | need to direct that a report should not be made public due to its sensitive nature and
the likelihood that those involved could be identified. For technical reasons, such a report is issued



under section 16 of the Act, even though it is not a public interest report, and | make a direction under
section 17 of the Act. However, there have been no such reports issued this year.

The Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 also gives me the power to do anything which is
calculated to facilitate the settlement of a complaint, as well as or instead of investigating it. In the
right circumstances, a ‘quick fix’ without an investigation can be of advantage to both the complainant
and the body concerned. Since taking up my role as Ombudsman, | have been keen to see greater use
made of this power and that we seek to identify as many cases as possible that may lend themselves to
this kind of resolution. | am pleased that it has been possible to increase even further the number of
cases settled in this way this year (see page 16 for further information).

Complaints that members of local authorities have broken the Code of Conduct

My role in considering complaints alleging that members of local authorities have broken the Code

of Conduct is slightly different to that in relation to complaints about public bodies. I investigate this
type of complaint under the provisions of Part lll of the Local Government Act 2000 and also relevant
Orders made by the National Assembly for Wales under that Act.

Where | decide that a complaint should be investigated, there are four findings that | can arrive at:
(a) that there is no evidence that there has been a breach of the authority’s code of conduct
(b) that no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters that were subject to investigation

(c) that the matter be referred to the authority’s monitoring officer for consideration by the standards
committee

(d) that the matter be referred to the President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales for adjudication by
a tribunal (this generally happens in more serious cases).

In the circumstances of (c) or (d) above | am required to submit my investigation report to the standards
committee or a tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales and it is for them to consider the evidence
| have found together with any defence put forward by the member concerned. Further, it is for them
to determine whether a breach has occurred and if so, what penalty, if any, should be imposed.




3. Complaints of maladministration and service failure
I ———

Headline figures
» We received 1,866 enquiries, up 66% on 2010/11

We received 1,605 new complaints, up 13% on 2010/11

We achieved 176 quick fixes/voluntary settlements, up 47% on 2010/11
We issued 178 investigation reports, down 43% on 2010/11
We closed 1,547 cases, down 5% on 2010/11

Number of cases on hand at 31 March 2012 was 455 cases, an increase of 54% on 2010/11

We had no investigations older than 12 months old open at 31 March 2012

Caseload — overall position

The number of complaints about public bodies that | receive continues to increase. As the figures in the
table below indicate, the overall level of complaints has increased by 13% compared to the position for

2010/1.
Total Number of Complaints

Cases carried over from 200910

(includes Code of Conduct complaints) 563
New public body complaint cases 201011 1425
Total complaints 2010/11 1,988
Cases carried over from 2010/11

(includes Code of Conduct complaints) 295
New public body complaint cases 2011/12 1,605
Total complaints 2011/12 1,900
Cases to be carried forward to 2012/13

(includes Code of Conduct complaints) 455

In addition, the office dealt with 1,866 enquiries during 2011/12, compared with 1127 last year.

Whilst during 201011 we managed to cut the number of cases carried forward from one year to
another to a caseload on hand of 295 from 563 in 2009710, it is of some concern that the level of cases
to be carried forward to 201213 will be 455. This to a great degree is accounted for by the fact that we
have had to deal with an increase in cases received (including code of conduct cases — many of which
were received near to the end of the year — see page 18)



Sectoral breakdown of complaints

The chart below shows the trends in complaints received per sector. Complaints about county councils
continue to be the most numerous type of complaint received. This is to be expected given that they
are direct providers of a wide range of services to the public. It is worth noting that the volume of
county council complaints has remained fairly steady. The increase in health body complaints has,
however, been exponential (527 complaints in 2011/12 compared to 340 in 2010/11).

Complaints by public body sector

900 845 n12 [ 2001
842
800
700
600
527
500 —
400 340
300 —
200
122 10
100 — l 69 68 5
25 707 0 2 3 M
County/County  NHS Bodies  Social Housing Welsh Community National Parks Police Other
Borough Government & Councils Authorities Authorities
Councils its sponsored
bodies




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Complaints about public bodies by subject

The trend in relation to health complaints is confirmed when considering complaints by subject area.
For the past four years, health complaints have been the most numerous types of complaint received.
However, the increase in numbers of health complaints as a proportion of caseload continues to
increase. As can be seen from the chart below, health now accounts for 32% of the caseload (this was
25% last year). Whilst it has to be borne in mind that the NHS Redress Measure came into force on 1
April 2011, | believe that this only partially accounts for the increase. | also believe that people are now
more inclined to complain about poor service in the NHS than was previously the case and it is notable
that almost half of health complaints are about clinical treatment in hospital.

Following the pattern of previous years, Planning and Housing are the next largest areas of complaint,
accounting for 16% and 15% of the complaints received respectively during 2011/12.

Complaints by subject 2011/12

4% 1% 3%

4%

= Benefits and Taxation

" Community facilities, recreation and leisure
Education

® Environment and Environmental Health

= Health

3% ® Housing

5% Planning and building control
Roads and transport

" Social services

B Various other

15%

Outcomes of complaints considered

An overall summary of the outcomes of the cases closed during the past year, and a comparison with
the position last year is given in the table below. Complaints included in the category ‘Cases closed
after initial consideration” include those received which:

» were outside of my jurisdiction

» were premature (that is, the complainant had not first complained to the public service provider,
giving them an opportunity to put matters right)




» did not provide any evidence of maladministration or service failure

» did not provide any evidence of hardship or injustice suffered by the complainant

» showed that little further would be achieved by pursuing the matter (for example, a public body may

have already acknowledged providing a poor service and apologised).

(A breakdown by listed authority of the outcome of complaints considered during 2011./12 is set out at

Annex B.).
Complaint about a Public Body 2011/12| 2010/M
Closed after initial consideration 1158 1113
Complaint withdrawn 16 48
Complaint settled voluntarily (includes iquick fixi of 157 cases) 176 120
Investigation discontinued 19 38
Investigation: complaint not upheld 60 104
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part 104 198
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part — public interest report 14 3
Total Outcomes — Complaints 1,547 1,634

Decision times

Below are two charts which report on the decision time targets we set ourselves. We aim to tell
complainants within 4 weeks whether we will take up their complaint from the date that sufficient
information about the complaint is received. Performance in relation to this target has continued to
improve. We set ourselves the specific target of achieving the four week deadline 80% of the time.

During 201112, this was achieved in respect of 94% of the complaints received.

The second target we set ourselves is to conclude cases within 12 months from the point that a
decision is made to take up a complaint (that is, to commence investigation of a complaint). | am
particularly pleased at the outcome illustrated below. However, | should point out that although in
percentage terms the chart shows a 100% success rate, actually there was one case closed during
the year which took longer than 12 months to investigate. This related to a complex children’s social

services complaint.




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Decision times for informing complainants if complaint will be taken up

65% 20m2 ] 20101
58%
16%
10% 8o, 9% 10%
° 7% o
3% 4% 3% 50s 3%
B B m m

Within 1 Within 2 Within 3 Within 4 Within 5 Within 6 Over 6
Week Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks

Decision times for concluding public body investigations

%
39% 20m12 - [ 200
Q,
25% 26%
23%
20%
18%
13% 12% 12%
10%
2%
0% 0% o%
3 months 03 to 06 06 to 09 09to 12 121018 18 to 24 Over 2
months months months months months years



Complaints Advice Team

The Complaints Advice Team (CAT) provides our frontline service and responds to enquiries to the
office. Enquiries are contacts made by potential complainants asking about the service provided, which
do not, in the end, result in a formal complaint being made to me. At this point of first contact, we will
act in various ways, such as:

» advise people how to make a complaint to me

» where appropriate, seek to resolve a problem without taking the matter to the stage of a formal
complaint

» where people have not already complained to the relevant public body, we will advise them
appropriately, sending their complaint directly to that body on their behalf if that is their wish.

» where the matter is outside my jurisdiction, direct the enquirer to the appropriate organisation able
to help them.

However, beyond dealing with enquiries, the CAT is also charged with looking for effective, swift and
innovative ways to resolve when we do receive formal complaints. They look to see if there are means
to address complainants’ concerns, without the need to progress matters to detailed investigation. We
are increasingly making greater use of a ‘quick fix’ approach and even those people we cannot help
appreciate receiving a decision promptly and by phone. I have been particularly pleased that against
the target of achieving 100 quick fixes during the year, we actually resolved 157 complaints in this way.

Examples of ‘quick fixes” achieved by the CAT are as follows:

Case 201101221 - Education/ Transport

M R complained that he had been told by the Council to obtain the services of a driver to take his
disabled daughter to school and that he would be reimbursed for the cost. He employed a driver, at a
cost of £840. The Council refused to reimburse Mr R, as the driver did not drive a licensed taxi. Mr R
said he had not been advised of such a requirement. The complaint had been ongoing for over a year.
The documents from the Council did not show that Mr R had been told that it was a requirement to
use a licensed taxi. My officer liaised with the Council officers who said that they believed that Mr

R would have been told of the requirement, but they had no record of any such conversation. The
Council agreed to reimburse Mr R the £840 and added a £60 time and trouble payment for the delay in
its handling of the complaint.




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Case 201102617 - Community Facilities

Mr F has had an allotment for many years and, in recent years, began to cultivate a piece of spare,
overgrown land adjacent to his plot. He planted fruit trees there and erected a shed. He had moved
home nine years previously, informing the Council of his change of address. However, following
reorganisation around three years ago, the Council wrongly wrote to his old address when it gave him
notice to remove the shed and trees from the plot. Mr F did not receive the notice and the Council
proceeded to remove the shed. Mr F complained to the Council, who told him he was in breach of his
allotment tenancy for not informing them of his change of address. My officer contacted the Council
and explained that Mr F had informed it of his change of address and had received mail to the correct
address for many years until the Council’s reorganisation around three years ago. The Council accepted
an error had occurred and provided Mr F with a new shed and paid him £60 redress to cover the cost
of an item stored in the destroyed shed.

Case 201100842 - Council Tax

Mrs A complained that the Council had put the liability for Council Tax in her name, not her son’s. She
could not afford to pay the debt and the Council had passed the debt to Bailiffs. She had received
notification from the Bailiffs that they would enter her home to remove goods to the value of the debt
and Mrs A would not leave her home in case this happened. She and her son had tried to change the
liability for the debt into her son’s name, but had been told this could not be done. My officer spoke to
the Council. It agreed to withdraw the Bailiffs from the case; put the liability in the name of Mrs As son
and advise him of the ways the debt and ongoing Council Tax bills could be paid.

Case 201002083 - Housing

Mrs H complained of a leaking pipe under her floor. A contractor had called but, after some
considerable time, had not returned to carry out the repair. Despite numerous phone calls, nothing
had been done. Mrs H was a vulnerable adult so my officer called the Housing Association to see if
the repair could be expedited. By 1.00pm the same day, my officer received a call saying that a housing
manager had called on Mrs H and a repair had been agreed. The Association promised to put in a new
surface pipe, as opposed to ripping up the floor, within three working days.

Joint investigations

Under the PSOW Act, | am able to co-operate with other Ombudsmen and | draw attention in my
Annual Reports to any such joint investigations. However, no complaints received by me or colleague
Ombudsmen in other parts of the United Kingdom have necessitated such a joint investigation over the
past year.



4. Code of Conduct Complaints

Headline figures

» We received 412 new complaints, up 49% on 2010/11

» We referred 19 investigation reports to either a standards committee or the Adjudication

Panel for Wales, down 58% on 2010/11.
» We closed 345 cases, down 1% on 2010/11

» We had no investigations older than 12 months old open at 31 March 2012

Complaints received

The table below gives a breakdown of the Code of Conduct complaints received by type of authority.
Whilst last year | was pleased to report a decline in the number of complaints received, | have been
particularly concerned to see the increase in the number of complaints received this year, which has
increased by 49%. | address this increase later in this section.

2011712 20101
Community Council 206 141
County/County Borough Council 177 135
National Park 28 1
Police Authority 1 -
Total 412 277

Nature of Code of Conduct complaints 2011/12

As the chart below shows, the majority of complaints received during 2011/12 related to matters of
‘equality and respect’ (39% compared to 57% in 2010/1). However, there was a noticeable increase in
the number of complaints relating to ‘objectivity and propriety’ over the past year, accounting for 25%
of the Code of Conduct complaints received compared to 10% in 2010/11.

1%

13%

17%

25%

Selflessness and stewardship

Accountability and openness

Duty to uphold the law

B |ntegrity

Objectivity and propriety

Promotion of equality and respect




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Summary of Code of Conduct complaint outcomes

Of the Code of Conduct cases considered in 2011/12, the majority were closed under the category
shown below as ‘Closed after initial consideration’. This includes decisions such as:

» there was no ‘prima facie’ evidence of a breach of the Code

» the alleged breach was insufficiently serious to warrant an investigation (and unlikely to attract a
sanction)

» the incident complained about happened before the member was elected (before they were bound
by the Code).

The number of cases which | concluded should be referred to either an authority’s standards
committee or to the Adjudication Panel for Wales was 19 compared to 45 in 2010/1.

2011712 2010/1
Closed after initial consideration 270 194
Complaint withdrawn 12 16
Investigation discontinued 43
Investigation completed: No evidence of breach 13
Investigation completed: No action necessary 28 38
Investigation completed: Refer to Standards Committee 15 21
Investigation completed: Refer to Adjudication Panel 4 24
Total Outcomes — Code of Conduct complaints 345 349

(A detailed breakdown of the outcome of Code of Conduct complaints investigated, by local authority,
during 2011/12 is set out at Annex C.).



Decision times

Below are the decision times for Code of Conduct complaints. The time targets set for Code of
Conduct complaints are similar to those for complaints about public bodies, i.e.

» to tell complainants within 4 weeks whether we will take up their complaint from the date that
sufficient information about the complaint is received

» to conclude cases within 12 months from the point that a decision is made to take up a complaint
(that is, to commence investigation of a complaint).

| am pleased that in terms of the overall caseload of complaints we received (both public body and
Code of Conduct), we have surpassed the overall general target of achieving the four week deadline
80% of the time. However, we have to deal with Code of Conduct complaints in their initial stages in a
different way compared to those in respect of public bodies. In respect of Code of Conduct cases we
achieved the target 82% of the time. But again, this is an improvement on last year’s position, when the
target was achieved 67% of the time. The detailed position is set out in the chart below.

Decision times for informing complainants we will take up their complaint

35%

2011712 . 20101
23%
19%
18%
15% o
139 14% 13%
12% 1%
9%
8% 8%
2%
Within 1 Within 2 Within 3 Within 4 Within 5 Within 6 Over 6
Week Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Decision times for concluding Code of Conduct investigations

20m/12 . 201071

35% 34%

24%

21%

19% 19%
11% 10%
0% 0%
3 months 03to 06 06 to 09 091012 121018 18 to 24
months months months months months

| have commented in previous Annual Reports about my concern about the time it has been taking to
deal with Code of Conduct investigations. | have also previously explained that this is partly due to

the consequences of members increasingly engaging legal representation. In 2009,/10 we changed our
process with a view to improving performance. | am pleased to be able to report therefore the changes
introduced are now bearing fruit. As the chart above indicates, no code of conduct investigations took
longer than 12 months to complete.

Commentary on the increase in the number of Code of Conduct complaints

It is not surprising that the increase in the number of Code of Conduct complaints received has
occurred during the year in the run up to county council elections. | am extremely disappointed that it
appears that the Code is being used in this way.

| am also concerned about certain practices emerging amongst town and community councils. It
became necessary during the year to correspond with the Clerk of Prestatyn Town Council in relation
to our mutual concern about the number of complaints | receive in respect of members of Prestatyn
Town Council. During 2011712, | received 65 complaints out of a total of 206, representing 32% of the
complaints about town and community councils. This level of complaints is entirely disproportionate.
Such a level of complaints, in my view, reflects a very hostile set of interactions between councillors
and must inevitably lower the esteem in which the Council is held by its electors. | have urged the
Council to reflect on the culture which is giving rise to these complaints and how behaviour might be
changed to reverse this trend. | am also aware that some of these complaints are being made by a small
number of members of the public and one person in particular. | will actively consider what further
steps are available to me to tackle the problem. In particular, if there is no reduction in the number of
complaints by members against other members, the Code has explicit provisions regarding vexatious



complaints and | will not hesitate to invoke them. | have urged the members of Prestatyn to develop
the Council so that its reputation steadily improves.

Code of Conduct for local authority members — changes to practice

In recognition of concern about certain aspects of the Code and the use of complaints for political
purposes, | have been in discussion with the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA), the
Association of Council Secretaries and Solicitors (ACSeS) and the Welsh Government on a range of
measures designed to reform the current Code of Conduct system, which can be achieved without

the need for legislation. The aim is that these measures will enable a local resolution process to be
introduced across Wales which should greatly reduce the number of complaints brought by councillors
against other councillors which need to be considered by my office.

The first element of this new approach was introduced at the beginning of 2012, and applies to members
of county/county borough councils and community/town councils. When | am minded not to investigate
a complaint or having commenced an investigation | am minded to close my investigation, | will write to
the Monitoring Officer. This will arise when | judge that even if the Standards Committee did find that
there had been a breach of the Code, it would be unlikely to administer a sanction. It will then be for the
Monitoring Officer to consider the matter. If they take a different view on the likelihood of the Standards
Committee applying a sanction if they decide that there has been a breach of the Code then | will
transfer the investigation to them for local consideration.

In April 2010, in response to requests from local authority monitoring officers and others, | issued
guidance for local authority members on the Model Code of Conduct issued in 2008. This was
developed following an initial consultation inviting local authorities to identify which aspects of the
Code they would value guidance upon, and a subsequent consultation with the Association of Council
Secretaries and Solicitors, One Voice Wales, the Welsh Assembly Government and the Adjudication
Panel for Wales on the draft. That guidance however was revised at the end of 2011/12 to reflect the
above changes, and has been placed on my website. | previously made it clear that the guidance
should be a ‘living’ document and it is intended to make further revisions and provide additional
guidance on the Code in the early part of 2012/13.

Standards Committee and Adjudication Panel for Wales’s Hearings — Indemnity Cap

| have also been in discussions with the WLGA regarding the scale of indemnity offered by Welsh local
authorities to their members when defending themselves against alleged breaches of their Code of
Conduct, especially when facing tribunals convened by the Adjudication Panel for Wales.

| have proposed that a cap of £10,000 should be put in place. As a councillor could face
disqualification, | believe that in seeking a parallel, it is helpful to consider employment tribunals, where
claimants may have lost their employment. In these instances, awards of costs are limited to £10,000,
offering a useful comparator. I have said that | would then match the £10,000 cap in respect of my own
costs. At the time of writing | am awaiting a formal response to my proposals on this matter.



5. Improving Public Service Delivery
I ———

My main role as an Ombudsman is to consider individual complaints. However, | place great importance
on ensuring that we identify the wider learning that can be derived from the outcomes of complaints.
Sharing this learning gives great potential for improved public service delivery in Wales.

Public interest reports

My ability to issue public interest reports, under section 16 of the PSOW Act is a key instrument
enabling me to share learning from the investigations | undertake. It means that | am able to achieve a
benefit beyond providing redress for the individual and making recommendations to ensure that the
systemic problems identified are addressed by the body concerned. It enables wider learning among
similar public bodies, and prompt and encourage them to ensure that no similar systemic problems
exist in their own organisation. These public interest reports also alert members of the public to the
issues identified and can prompt them too to make a complaint if they have suffered from similar
failings.

| issued 14 public interest reports during 2011/12. Summaries of these are at Annex A and their full text
is available on my website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Section 21 reports and ‘The Ombudsman’s Casebook’

The vast majority of my investigation reports are not formally publicised because the matters raised

in the individual cases are not considered to be of public interest in themselves. Nonetheless, when
upheld, these investigations often identify failings within the body concerned, which it agrees to rectify
as part of the recommendations that | make. This can include, for example, improved training, changes
to management practices or improved procedures.

However, during 2010/11 | decided to introduce ‘The Ombudsman’s Casebook’, a case digest. This was
developed to reflect the fact that although individual cases of this type may not be of ‘public interest;,
when considered amongst a number of similar complaints and outcomes, there may well be lessons
that public bodies can learn from these complaints too. We issued four case digests during 2011./12.
The Casebook has a wide circulation which includes bodies in jurisdiction and Assembly Members, as
well as individuals who have ‘signed up’ to receive a copy. | have been very pleased with the feedback
that | have been receiving from all quarters concerning this publication. | intend to expand the content
of the Casebook during 2012/13 so that it also includes learning from those cases that we resolve
informally (i.e. the quick fixes).

Topics addressed in the four digests published during 2011712 are set out below. In view of the
increasing number of health complaints that | receive, it is not surprising that health was also the key
focus of issues raised and were as follows:

» lack of care for people at the end of their lives
» ensuring patients receive proper follow-up care

» concerns about Nursing and Midwifery Care



» inadequate Weekend/Out of hours medical cover

» removal of patients from GP lists

» inadequate assessments.

Subjects also addressed in the Casebook over the past year were:

» poor complaint management

» conflict of interest and impartiality in dealing with complaints

» failures to make provision for children’s special educational needs

» responsibility for housing repairs.

Annual letters

For the second year | issued Annual Letters to county/county borough councils and health boards.
This time these were published on my website. | have continued to limit issuing such letters to these
organisations, as | do not receive the necessary volume of complaints in respect of the other types of
bodies to enable meaningful comparisons on an all Wales basis and to identify any trends. | have been
heartened that many bodies have accepted them as a learning tool, enabling them to have greater
understanding of their own organisation’s ‘performance’ beyond that possible to provide in my Annual
Report.

Complaints Wales signposting service

| reported last year on the background to the provision of a new service by my office, the Complaints
Wales signposting service. | am pleased to be able to report this year that that service has now been
launched. It is delivered by my Complaints Advice Team.

Complaints Wales is a telephone and web service. Its aim is not only to advise people on which
public service provider they should complain to, but also to capture the crux of their complaint and
(with the complainant’s consent) send the details on to the relevant public body on their behalf.

The service signposts complaints not only in respect of public services devolved to Wales but also

in relation to non devolved public services — for example, benefits and pensions. It also assists in
relation to organisations such as the utility companies, which many people still consider to be ‘public
services, despite deregulation having taken place many years ago. Furthermore, if people have already
complained directly to the service provider, then the service will signpost them to the relevant
ombudsman or other complaint handling body.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

The development of the service has meant a considerable amount of data gathering. The web service

in particular has been a complex technical development, especially in relation to the integration of the
website with my complaints handling database (see further details at page 29]. | believe that in terms of
the ombudsman community we are a world leader in this initiative.

Model complaints policy and guidance for public service providers

| reported last year on the work of an Assembly Government working group that | was asked to Chair
where proposals had been put forward to the First Minister in respect of a common complaints
handling process for public service providers in Wales. | am pleased that the advice submitted received
a positive response and that the Welsh Government issued the model policy and guidance in July 201,
urging all public service providers to adopt the model. Some organisations have now implemented the
policy and guidance, and this includes the Welsh Government itself, and | am aware that a number of
organisations are making preparations to do so. Furthermore, it is my intention to recommend that the
body concerned adopts the model policy and guidance where, during an investigation, | find that there
has been poor complaints handling.

The model policy and guidance was developed at the same time as the new health complaints
procedure under the National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and Redress Arrangements)
(Wales) Regulations 2011. These complaint procedures are consistent with and complement each
other. | very much hope that a similar position will result from the current review of the social services
complaints procedure.



6. Governance and Accountability
I ———

The Ombudsman

The Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act establishes the office of the Ombudsman as a
‘corporation sole’. | am accountable to the National Assembly for Wales, both through the mechanism
of this annual report, and as Accounting Officer for the public funds with which the National Assembly
entrusts me to undertake my functions.

Governance arrangements
Advisory Panel

During 2011/12, | reviewed the governance arrangements of my office, whilst bearing in mind the
constitutional position of a corporation sole and the fact that responsibility and accountability for

the activities carried out by the office must remain with the Ombudsman. My predecessor introduced
an advisory Audit Committee (see below), which has proved a valuable source of advice. However, to
enhance openness and transparency, | considered that the office would benefit from the creation of an
Advisory Panel. The role of the Panel in underpinning excellent governance will be to provide support
and challenge to the Ombudsman.

Recruitment for the Advisory Panel began in March 2012, with a view to appointing Panel Members by
the end of May.

Audit and Risk Committee

The use that | make of the resources available to me is subject to the scrutiny of the Wales Audit
Office, which is responsible for auditing my accounts. This work was outsourced to Grant Thornton
UK LLP by the Wales Audit Office in 2008/09. The Auditor General, however, remains ultimately
responsible for the external audit function.

Although a ‘corporation sole’, | have an Audit Committee which is charged with advising me in
discharging my duties as Accounting Officer. The Chair of the Committee has been Mr Laurie Pavelin,
CBE, FCA. Mr Pavelin’s term as Chair came to an end on 31 March 2012 and recruitment for a successor
is taking place in tandem with the recruitment for the Advisory Panel members. In addition, Professor
Margaret Griffiths serves as an independent Member, who brings her considerable legal expertise,
particularly in the Welsh context. | am also a member of the Committee in my capacity as the
Accounting Officer.

The Audit Committee considers matters including budget estimates, annual accounts, external and
internal audit reports, and risk management issues. It also considered matters including the Strategic
and Operational Plans during 2011/12, although this responsibility will transfer to the Advisory Panel
from 2012/13. The Audit Committee met four times during 2011/12 and | am pleased that no substantive
matters of concern were raised during the year.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Following a tender/interview process, Deloitte began on their work as my internal auditors from 1 April
2011. Their programme of work is guided and overseen by the Audit Committee and the first year has
seen the development of a good and constructive relationship.

Management Team

Whilst | am solely accountable for the decisions and operation of my office, the Management Team is a
formal group that provides me with advice and support.

It takes specific responsibility for advising me on the development of the three year Strategic Plan and
the annual Operational Plan; annual budgetary requirements; ensuring the best use of the public money
received; and an appropriate performance monitoring framework.

It is also responsible for the delivery and monitoring of strategic aims; monthly performance monitoring
against objectives; ensuring that risks are actively identified and addressed; agreeing corporate policies
(e.g. complaint handling procedures, human resources policies) and monitoring their effectiveness; and
developing the office’s outreach strategy and monitoring its implementation.,

Three Year Strategic Plan and Business Plan

At the end of March 2012, | published the Strategic Plan for the next three years. This was developed
with the involvement of all staff in my office. We have introduced a revised Vision as well as
establishing new key strategic aims for the three years ahead of us. Whilst much of the Plan takes
forward the innovations introduced over the past couple of years, there is also focus on preparing for
the new areas of jurisdiction which are likely to be introduced to my office as a result of the Social
Services (Wales) Bill. I also published the annual Business Plan for 201213 at the end of March, which
flows from the Strategic Plan and sets specific targets and performance indicators for the year ahead.

Strategic Equality Plan

Under the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 laid
down by the National Assembly for Wales, | published my Strategic Equality Plan at the end of March
2012 (compliant with the requirement to issue the Plan before 2 April 2012). Under the specific duties,
| am required to report annually on relevant equality issues. | do so under Section 8 of this Annual
Report.



7. Other Activities
e

Complainant satisfaction research

Research via complainant satisfaction surveys has been an important means of understanding
complainants’ views of the service we provide.

Last year we began a new approach, conducting quantitative surveys of those complainants who
contact our Complaints Advice Team, with Opinion Research Service (ORS) providing us with a more
focussed in-depth qualitative survey of those people whose complaints were taken to investigation.
They do so on a sample basis with interviews usually being undertaken by phone, but face to face if
this is more appropriate in the circumstances of the complainant. The aim is to achieve an even better
understanding from the complainant’s perspective of what we do well and what we can perhaps
improve upon.

In relation to the first contact survey work, the outcome of responses received during 2011/12, where
service users were asked whether they agreed or disagreed with the statements below is as follows:

% of respondents answering either
‘strongly agree’ or ‘agree’

It was easy to find out how to contact the Ombudsman’s office 83%
The service | have received so far has been helpful and sensitive 68%
The person that dealt with the query knew enough to be able

to answer my questions 67%
I was given a clear explanation of what would happen next to

my concern 74%
The service provided what | expected of it 63%

With regard to the qualitative work that ORS has undertaken for us, as in previous research work we
have commissioned, complainants’ views are heavily influenced by the outcome of their case. Typically,
those whose cases were fully upheld or voluntarily settled to their satisfaction were far happier with
the service they received than those whose cases were not upheld or discontinued without settlement
(and even some whose cases were upheld, but not fully).

Comments of a positive nature included the politeness of staff and their empathy, efficiency,
communication and interpersonal skills, professionalism and neutrality. The majority of
those interviewed were also impressed with the thoroughness of their investigation and the
conscientiousness of individual investigators.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Those who were not content had a perception that the Ombudsman undertook a superficial
investigation, did not wish to rock the boat’, did not answer questions sufficiently or provide
explanations for what had happened, or was biased in favour of the public body. Some felt that there
was: an inappropriate offer of ‘compensation’; an insufficient explanation of the decision taken; a
sense that complainants are less important than the public bodies under scrutiny; and that a decision
in favour of the public body sanctions ‘poor practice’. There is some belief that the Ombudsman has
insufficient powers and does not go far enough in ensuring that poor practice is dealt with effectively
so that public authorities change their practices. (It should be noted that all of the Ombudsman’s
recommendations have been implemented.)

We have been making progress in relation to managing people’s expectations of what the Ombudsman
can and cannot do, but it appears that we still have more work to do in this area, including emphasising
that the Ombudsman cannot act as an advocate.

Information technology
Case handling administration system

April 2011 saw the introduction of a major upgrade to the case handling administration system. This
development work took place as it was evident that our then existing system would no longer be fit
for purpose. As is often the case with new technological systems, this was not without its problems.
However, | am pleased to say that these have now been ironed out and that the system is now
operating in the way expected.

Websites

We also developed new websites, one for the core Public Services Ombudsman for Wales service, the
other for the new Complaints Wales signposting service. The websites and complaint handling system
have now been integrated, and a key benefit is that the data service users enter onto the webforms are
automatically populated into case records on the complaints handling administration system.

External communication

Increasingly the internet is the means by which people learn about the work of the ombudsman.
Indeed of those who returned our monitoring forms during 201112, just over a quarter indicated that
this was the means by which they found out about the office. This is an important ‘shop window’ for
the office therefore. | have been keen that my website should appear more welcoming and easier

to navigate. Therefore, in addition to introducing the technology to enable integration between the
webforms with the complaints handling administration system, we also sought to develop a more user
friendly website, introducing for the first time also a new Complaints Wales website.



Our new websites

P ——

Prnbudmn -

Call us on 0845 601 0987

- m——

We have also been assessing what use we could make of developments in social media, and as a result
undertook an additional piece of work at the end of March 2012, which will enable us to introduce
Twitter, as a feed on the PSOW website, during April 2012.

Complaints Wales

Complaints Wales
Cwynion Cymru
v Sy s st

les is here to help.

‘W can ghve you information an how bo maks your complaint
and helpyou zsnd it b the ssrvice providsr

1F i N alreduty campdained 1o them b 3 sl unhappy wi Gan sl vou if
thers is amywhere lse you can take your compdaint

W are Indepencent and impartia 5o, o your Complaint has besn sent, wi Grnot act
enyour behalf, But we can bell you about organizations that can advise and asktyou

Visit our gk

e

The Complaints Wales service was ‘soft launched’ during
2011712 in order to ensure that there were no teething
problems, particularly with the new technology, before
widely promoting the new service. | was satisfied by

the beginning of 2012 that the service was sufficiently
established to begin the work of widely publicising the
service. A publicity campaign began mid-March 2012,
therefore, with a view to sending a leaflet to every
household in Wales (i.e. over 1,400,000 homes).

The leaflet has also been produced in eight minority ethnic
languages (placed on the website) and is available in Braille.




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Outreach

A substantial proportion of our communication activities and resources have been channelled towards
the Complaints Wales service over the past year, as referenced above. We also held a seminar for
voluntary organisations in Wales, where we explained the new Complaints Wales service and how this
could help them and their clients; we also however took the opportunity to discuss the core work of
the Ombudsman’s office.

We continued to take opportunities to speak at conferences and seminars, where possible. For
example, the conferences of Community Health Councils, End of Life Alliance and Dignity in Practice.
We also met with organisations such as Age Cymru, Learning Disability Wales and Hospices Cymru.

The outreach work of the office was enhanced by significant media attention to my investigation
reports. | have been particularly pleased with the high level of television and radio coverage (both
English and Welsh language) received during 2011712, particularly so during the second half of the year.
This helps to raise awareness not only of the issues of concern identified but also of the service that

| provide in general. New media monitoring arrangements were also introduced in May 2011, which
provides improved knowledge of articles referring to the work of the office both amongst the UK and
Welsh press. From May 2011 to March 2012, there were 208 articles mentioning the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales.

Human resources

As Ombudsman, | am keenly aware of how fortunate | am in having a committed and expert workforce.
| equally recognise the importance of ensuring that | provide the opportunity to enable continual
development. Revised staff appraisal and training arrangements were introduced during 2011/12 and
these are closely linked to our business objectives.

The service level agreement in place with the Wales Audit Office to provide me with advice on human
resources matters continues. | have highly appreciated the assistance that | have received during the
past year.

I will continue to monitor the level of increase in complaints received during the course of the year
as well as undertake an assessment on the impact of the likely extension to my jurisdiction as a result
of the Social Services (Wales) Bill. There is no question that delivering the service expected by those
people who complain to my office will pose a substantial challenge, and I will need to carefully
monitor the rate of increase in complaints to ensure that the reduced capacity of my office can
continue to deliver the high quality service that service users expect.

The organisational structure of my office showing the position as at 31 March 2012 is shown at the end
of this section.



Best practice in the world of the Ombudsman

| consider the work of the British and Irish Ombudsman Association (BIOA) to be important.
Ombudsman schemes need to be objective and maintain an appropriate distance from the bodies

in jurisdiction. Consequently, it is essential that we learn from the best practice of other similar
ombudsman schemes. BIOA offers the opportunity to share best practice, learn from one another
and discuss common issues of concern. Members of my staff represent me on a number of the BIOA
Interest Groups.

The BIOA Biennial Conference was held during 201. Having had the honour of being appointed as
Chair of BIOA during 2010, | was naturally fully involved in arrangements and in presiding over the two
days. | would like take the opportunity here to thank my support staff for providing some additional
support to BIOA by helping out with administrative arrangements at the conference. It also reflected
well on the Ombudsman’s office in Wales that two members of my staff were speakers at separate
sessions during the conference. | was also pleased that my office was able to host a meeting of the
BIOA Executive Committee in September 2011,

BIOA has developed with Queen Margaret University in Edinburgh an accredited training course for
staff of ombudsman/complaint handling schemes. Having received requests from staff of bodies within
my jurisdiction for training for investigation of complaints, | have taken the opportunity to enter into a
joint arrangement with the University so that they can provide similar training for complaints handling
staff within public service organisations in Wales. A pilot course will take place in May 2012. The
success of this will be assessed and a view will then be taken as to whether this should be rolled out

further.

Increasingly, the International Ombudsman Institute is also
becoming an important network for my office in terms

of shared learning. | was, therefore, particularly pleased

to be able to welcome Senyor Rafael Ribo, the Catalan
Ombudsman and Chairperson of the European Region

of the International Ombudsman Institute to my office

at the beginning of March 2012 and was proud to be able
to provide him with a taste of Wales’s St David's Day
celebrations, including those at the Senedd.

| greatly value too the continued opportunity to participate in the UK and Ireland Public Sector
Ombudsmen meetings, as | do the regular meetings that | have with the Children’s and Older People’s
Commissioners for Wales. | was also particularly pleased to welcome the new Welsh Language
Commissioner to my office, where my staff and | explained the way we operate and shared some of
our experience.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Complaints about the PSOW service

The ‘Complaints about us’ procedure can be used if someone is unhappy about our service. For
example, a complainant may wish to complain about undue delay in responding to correspondence;
or feel that a member of staff has been rude or unhelpful; or that we have not done what we said we
would. There is a separate procedure for complainants wishing to appeal against a decision on their
complaint. Further details about both these procedures are available on my website:
www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk.

The table below reports on the number of complaints received during 2011712 and their outcomes,
together with a comparison of the position in 2010/11.

Details of the ‘complaints about us’ received 2011/12 2010/
Not upheld 24 21
Upheld in whole or in part 5 3
Referred to Investigation Manager/Investigator

(investigation decision related) 6 4
Complaint withdrawn 1 0
Still open at 31 March 2 5
Total received 38 33

Details of the five cases upheld in whole or in part during 2011/12 are as follows:

Subject of complaint about us Action taken

Complaint concerned lack of regular updates and | Letter of apology sent.
undue delay in investigation.

Complaint concerned a request for information | Letter of apology sent and staff reminded of
contained within an investigation comeback letter | importance of forwarding on both ‘Complaints

which was not picked up by the investigator. About Us” and information requests to relevant
department.
Complaint that the complainant was not Letter of apology sent.

informed in a timely manner of a new investigator
assigned to their case,

Complainant dissatisfied by being addressed in Letter of apology sent.
first name terms in correspondence.

Complaint concerned undue delay in updates Letter of apology sent.
about their complaint.




UBWISPNQUIO A
34303 'vd

ﬁ O UoLBULION| |

S X 103e813saAU|

9 X IDNHO
poddng yiomased

S X 103e813s3AU|

G x Jojedisaaul

g X JoyediysaAul Joluas

g X JoyediysaAul Joluas

| X JoyediysaAul Joluag

Ja8euepy suoijediysanu|

'SR
N W W

AWVIL
NOILLVOLLSIANI

Jafeuepy suonyediysaaul

WvVil
IDIAQV SLNIVIdWOD

F X 120140
1ioddns yiomased

~
F X A3210 s321A13S

ajelodiod Joiuas

JIoMmaseD) JoIuag

1adeuepy A

saniaIag ajelodion

H | % 4201340 oddng

v

NOILVYLSININGY B
S3DIAYIS 1LVHOLHUOD

~

Juawafeurpy )
H suor 4adeueyy A Ja3euepy suoizediysasul
13e21uNWWo) g A31j0d )
WViIL S WViL
JALLND3X3 NOILYDILSIANI
lafeuepy
mainay

135IAPY |e837 %8
suoiyediysaAu] jo Jo3dallq

13s1ApY
|eipueuly

l1epuAL 12134

(2L0T yo1eW 1€ 3 se uonisod) 3iey) jeuonesiuedio




8. Equality Issues mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

A commitment to treating people fairly is central to the role of an ombudsman. As Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales, | am committed to providing equal opportunities for the staff in my
employment and in the service we together provide to complainants. No job applicant, staff member
or person receiving a service from the PSOW will be discriminated against, harassed or victimised due
to personal characteristics such as age, disability, ethnicity, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy or
maternity, sexual orientation, religion or belief, whether they are married or in a civil partnership, or
on the basis of any other irrelevant consideration. | expect my staff to share my total opposition to
unlawful and unfair discrimination and my commitment to conducting business in a way that is fair to
all members of society

Under the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011
laid down by the National Assembly for Wales, | have a duty to publish a Strategic Equality Plan and
equality objectives. The first such Plan, which contains my equality objectives, was published at the
end of March 2012 and complied with the statutory requirement to publish before 2 April 2012. (The
Plan is available on my website: see www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk). Also under the specific duties, |
am required to produce an annual report in respect of equality matters. Clearly, the degree to which
| can report on progress against the Strategic Equality Plan is limited bearing in mind that it was not
published until March 2012. However, | will report below on work undertaken in relation to equality
considerations since the inception of the office of the PSOW on 1 April 2006.

Accessibility

As part of our process, we do our very best to identify as early as possible any individual requirements
that may need to be met so that a service user can fully access our services and, in particular, we ask
people to tell us their preferred method of communication with us. We always try to make reasonable
adjustments where these will help people make and present their complaint to us. Examples are:
providing correspondence in Easy Read; using Language Line for interpretation, where a complainant

is not comfortable with making their complaint in English or Welsh; obtaining expertise to assist us to
understand the particular requirements of complainants with certain conditions, such as Asperger’s
syndrome; and visiting complainants at their home.

We produce key documents in alternative formats, such as CD/tape and Braille, translate these into
the eight key ethnic minority languages used in Wales; and we have upgraded the accessibility of our
website from A to AA compliant and introduced BrowseAloud which allows the website to ‘talk’ to the
user.



Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring — Service Users

We have always undertaken equality monitoring in respect of service users, which has informed our
annual outreach strategy. Results of equality monitoring undertaken to date in respect of service users
has been published in the Strategic Equality Plan. Our own equality monitoring has been supplemented
by equality monitoring questions asked during our customer satisfaction surveys undertaken on our
behalf by Opinion Research Services. We have used the evidence from these satisfaction surveys to
improve our service. For example, by removing certain barriers such as not always requiring complaints
to be made in writing and allowing them to be made by phone, email or through our website. We
intend to enhance the equality monitoring that we undertake in-house, including developing our
complaints handling system to enable analysis between groups and outcomes of complaints. (Note:
access to this data will be strictly limited to two members of staff not involved in considering/
investigating complaints.) We will use this intelligence to identify any areas that could improve our
customer service, including equality considerations.

Training

My staff have over the years received equality and diversity training. We have done this for two
reasons. Firstly, so that in the service we provide we can be responsive to the changing needs and
requirements of people with whom we communicate and interact. Secondly, so that we have the
knowledge to be able to identify during our investigations any failings by public service providers in
respect of equality duties. Examples in this latter regard can be found amongst the summaries found at
Annex A of this report. One case (reference 201001670) refers to a failure identified to comply with the
Disability Discrimination Act (the relevant legislation prior to the Equality Act 2010). Another relevant
case (reference 20100198) refers to a failure to recognise that a patient’s human rights had been
engaged.

Outreach

We meet regularly with third sector organisations, holding formal seminars at least biennially, giving
talks and addresses at their conferences and we also have an ongoing proactive programme of meetings
with individual organisations. This enables two way discussions about the work of the office, so that

we can obtain views on the service we provide from their perspective and it enables us to explain how
they can help those individuals who require assistance in making a complaint to us to do so.

We have also developed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Older People’s and Children’s
Commissioners in relation to co-operation, joint working and the exchange of information.




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Equality Impact Assessments

As part of the work in developing the Strategic Equality Plan, we also developed an equality impact
assessment toolkit during the past year. This will be an aid to help us identify the likely or actual effect
of our policies and practices on protected groups. The toolkit will now be used each time a policy or
procedure is either developed or revised.

Staff Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring - Pay and Gender

The data and information that we hold in respect of my staff is more limited. During the forthcoming
year, therefore, we will revise our current arrangements for gathering employment information and pay
differences so that we hold a central record. We will ask staff to complete and return a monitoring
form seeking information in respect of each of the protected characteristics. | recognise, of course, that
disclosure of such information by my staff will have to be on a voluntary basis.

We do, however, hold information in relation to pay and gender. Under the specific duties I am required
to set an equality objective for gender and pay; if | do not do so, | must explain why. My Strategic
Equality Plan does not currently contain any specific objective in this regard because as the table below
shows females are very well represented at the higher pay scales within my office. However, | will
ensure that this situation is kept under continual review and revise my equality objectives if necessary.

Employment equality data as of 31/03/2012

Pay (FTE) Male Female

under £10,000 0 0

£10,000 to £19,999 0 7

£20,000 to £29999 0 10

£30,000 to £39,999 5 1l

£40,000 to £49,999 6 9

£50,000 to £59,999 1 4

£60,000 + 1

Subtotal 12 42

Total Individuals 54

Contract Type Male Female Working Patterns Male Female
Permanent 12 40 Full Time m 39
Fixed term 0 2 Part Time 1 3
Subtotal 12 42 Subtotal 12 42
Total 54 Total 54




Annex A

Public Body Complaints
Public Interest Reports: Case Summaries




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Health

Cwm Taf Local Health Board
Case reference 200700602 — Report issued March 2012

Mrs R complained to me about the manner in which the former Pontypridd and Rhondda NHS Trust
dealt with a complaint she made about care provided to her late mother, Mrs T. Mrs R was specifically
concerned about the manner in which the Chief Executive of the Trust had responded to her about the
treatment provided to her mother without declaring that the Chief Executive was married to a consultant
surgeon who had been involved in the events about which she had complained to the Health Board.

My investigation found that the Chief Executive did fail to declare the fact that she was married to
the Consultant when she responded to Mrs R's complaint. It also became evident to me that the
Consultant in question had been significantly involved in one of the surgical procedures that Mrs T
underwent and about which Mrs R complained. He also found that the former Trust’s policy was that
the Chief Executive should respond to all complaints letters although there was clearly provision for
this function to be performed by the Deputy Chief Executive of the Trust. | found the failure of the
former Chief Executive to declare her connection with the Consultant to have led to a perception by
Mrs R of a conflict of interest and accordingly | upheld the complaint. In doing so | emphasised that

| had seen no evidence to suggest that the Chief Executive had any influence on the content of the
response letters sent to Mrs R.

Cwm Taf Local Health Board
Case reference 201002624 — Report issued March 2012

Mrs A's daughter, Sarah, was born with severe developmental delay and throughout her life had
complex health care needs. Mrs A complained to me about Sarah’s treatment and care at the Royal
Glamorgan Hospital upon her transition from children’s to adult hospital care. Mrs A said that during
Sarah’s only admission to an adult hospital ward, there were unacceptable delays in administering the
appropriate antibiotic medication and that staff were not trained or equipped to meet Sarah’s needs
because of a lack of co-ordination between services during the transfer of her care. Sadly, Sarah died in
hospital on 21 October 2009, aged 20. Mrs A believed that the outcome of her final hospital admission
would have been different had Sarah’s treatment and care been satisfactory.

| found that arrangements for Sarah’s transfer of hospital care were inadequate. There was no evidence
either of a clear, co-ordinated transfer process or of an effective hand over of care. The Health Board
also failed to plan and deliver services in a way that recognised Sarah’s individual needs in accordance
with the equalities legislation. Whilst | did not find that the poor transition arrangements contributed
to any clinical failing, there was some evidence that the quality of Sarah’s care was compromised as a
result. I also found that aspects of Sarah’s clinical treatment fell below a reasonable standard; the most
significant of which were the failure to initiate treatment with intravenous antibiotics within four hours
of Sarah’s admission to hospital and a further delay of more than 21 hours during which two doses of



prescribed oral antibiotics were not given. | was unable to say whether or not the outcome would have
been different for Sarah but for those clinical failings. Finally, the investigation identified that there
were inadequacies in the Health Board’s handling of Mrs As complaint.

| upheld each element of Mrs As complaint and made a number of recommendations to the Health
Board for further action to address the failings identified. The Health Board agreed to implement the
recommendations and to apologise and make a redress payment to Mrs A of £2000 in recognition of
the failings in her daughter’s care and the resulting uncertainty over the sad outcome.

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust
Case references 201002432 & 201002552 — Report issued March 2012

| received two separate complaints from Mr F and Mrs B who respectively complained about the care
provided to their father and husband by the Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust. Both complained
about the length of time it took for an ambulance to attend following the 999 calls they made to the
service. They also complained about the manner in which the Trust had dealt with their complaints.

| found that ambulances and rapid response vehicles from other divisions of the service could have
been deployed to both incidents, and they might have arrived with the patients sooner, but that their
deployment had been overlooked. | was also critical of the quality of the Trust’s investigations into Mr
F and Mrs B's complaints, the content of its responses and the time it took to provide them. | upheld
both complaints in full. | made a total of nine recommendations including that the Trust apologise to
Mr F, Mrs B and their respective families and to pay them appropriate redress. | also recommended
that the Trust should reinvestigate or review the original complaint; review the relevant policies and
procedures and its management of resources and audit any changes it has implemented.

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board

Case reference 201001167 - Report issued October 2011

Mrs W complained about the care and treatment her husband, Mr W, received whilst a patient at
Ysbyty Gwynedd (the Hospital). Mr W had been admitted to the Hospital for treatment due to
dysphagia (swallowing difficulties) experienced when eating and drinking, He was discharged but was
readmitted four days later due to worsening dysphagia. Mrs W complained that there was a very
poor standard of care provided to her husband during his admissions which led to deterioration in his
condition and, ultimately, contributed to his death. Mrs W complained about the following:

» that a procedure to stretch Mr W’s gullet did not go ahead as planned due to a nursing staff error;

» that her husband was discharged without having this surgery and once readmitted, due to his
declining health, he was too weak to have the procedure carried out;

» that there was a delay in obtaining a second opinion on her husband’s condition and arranging a
transfer to a specialist hospital.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

| upheld the majority of Mrs W’s complaints. | found that the clinical care provided to Mr W was
inadequate as it was insufficiently intensive and lacked input from his consultant physician. | found
that there were a number of clinical failings which contributed to the health problems that emerged
during Mr W’s readmission. The most significant of these was the decision to discharge Mr W from the
Hospital’s care without carrying out an oesophageal dilatation (a procedure to stretch the gullet) and
the delay in raising its concerns regarding Mr W's deteriorating condition with a specialist hospital. |
found that whilst the errors identified were significant, there was no definitive evidence to conclude
that the ultimate tragic outcome could have been avoided but for those errors. Finally, | found that in
general, the nursing care and management of Mr W was reasonable. However, inadequacies in some of
the nursing records prevented a definitive conclusion from being reached in respect of the adequacy of
care delivered when the tubing attached to his chest drain became disconnected.

| recommended that the Health Board should reflect on the failings in the care identified and provide
confirmation of the further action taken to address the inadequacies in its staff awareness of national
guidelines in relation to cesophageal dilatation, the Hospital’s transfer procedures for critically ill
patients, the availability of medical cover over Bank Holiday weekend periods and the insertion of
chest drains. | recommended that a payment of £500 be provided to Mrs W in recognition of the time
and trouble in pursuing her complaint together with a full apology for the shortcomings in the care
provided to Mr W and for the Health Board’s failure to recognise these failings sooner.

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board
Case reference 201001670 — Report issued September 2011

Mrs A and Mr B complained about the Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board (“the UHB”) in
relation to the care provided to their brother Paul in hospital during late 2008 /early 2009.

They explained that Paul had severe learning disabilities. He had been admitted to hospital for a serious
bowel problem. Surgeons operated on Paul soon after his admittance. Paul sadly died in hospital about
three weeks later due to respiratory problems involving excess secretions in his bronchial airways.

Mrs A and Mr B complained about many aspects of Paul’s nursing and clinical care. They provided
papers which showed that the nursing care had been strongly criticised in a Protection of Vulnerable
Adults (“POVA) investigation run by the former NHS Trust. However, they remained unconvinced that
the resulting action plan was adequate. Moreover, they considered that the investigation had not
focussed on clinical care. Their main clinical concerns were that Paul had contracted pneumonia whilst
in the Intensive Therapy Unit (ITU”), been transferred prematurely to a general ward (“the Ward”) and
that his care on the Ward in the days leading to his tragic death was poor.

My investigation did not focus on nursing care, as the POVA process had been thorough in that regard.

However, | found that Paul’s nursing care on the Ward had been very poor and when combined with his
clinical care, had produced an unacceptable level of treatment. With regard to Paul’s clinical care, I did

not agree with every aspect of Mrs A and Mr Bs complaint. However, | concluded that the clinical care
was generally well below a reasonable standard. In the investigation, | found that there was:



a lack of outreach support to the Ward from the ITU;

» an over reliance on the assumption that Paul’s symptoms were psychological rather than clinical;

a lack of involvement of the consultant in charge of Paul’s care;

a failure to supervise junior doctors;

inadequate examinations of Paul;

failure to ensure that vital suctioning care was provided; and,

an inability among doctors to notice that nurses were not recording Paul’s observations properly.

| also concluded that the hospital had failed to comply with the provisions of the Disability
Discrimination Act regarding Paul, primarily by not making reasonable adjustments to its service to
cater for his special needs. | strongly upheld the main aspect of the complaint, concerning Paul’s clinical
care. Finally, | stated that my view was that reasonable nursing and clinical care might have altered the
outcome for Paul, although this was uncertain.

| made a number of recommendations. These included a payment of £1500 to both Mrs A and Mr

B for the uncertainty that they have to endure over whether Paul may have survived with adequate
care. | recommended learning disability awareness training for staff; many reminders for staff about
appropriate care; and relevant audits and inspections. | also recommended that the matter be discussed
at a full meeting of the UHB with regard to how it can best ensure that it complies with the Equality
Act. The UHB agreed to implement the recommendations.

Aneurin Bevan Health Board
Case reference 201000903 - Report issued September 2011

Mrs Q complained about the care and treatment that her mother, Mrs F, received whilst a patient at
Ystrad Mynach Hospital (the hospital). Mrs F had been admitted to the hospital for assessment due to
deterioration in her mental health. Mrs Q complained that her mother received a very poor standard of
care during her admission which led to a more rapid deterioration in her mental and physical condition
and, ultimately, contributed to her death.

Mrs Q complained about the following:

» that the family’s requests for medical intervention and a transfer to a medical ward were ignored
despite signs of Deep Vein Thrombosis (DVT) and deterioration in her condition during the weekend
of her passing away;

» that the standards of personal care provided to Mrs F were poor and that Mrs F lost considerable
weight during her admission to the hospital; and,

» that the communication with her and Mrs F's family and the information provided about her care
plan were grossly inadequate.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

| upheld the majority of Mrs Qs complaints. | found that the hospital’s procedures for the earlier
detection of DVT in a patient displaying potential symptoms were lacking. I also found that the staff
failed to act in an appropriate manner and contact a doctor for a medical opinion following the
deterioration in Mrs F's condition. The hospital also failed to seek or provide adequate reasons why
access to a doctor over the weekend period was not available. | found that, in general, the overall
record keeping for the period of Mrs F's admission was extremely poor. This had led to inadequacies in
the response provided to the family during the internal complaints process and also in the proposed
Action Plan implemented by Aneurin Bevan Health Board (the Health Board) to address the family’s
concerns. Finally, | found that the standard of care and treatment provided to Mrs F during her
admission fell below a reasonable standard. There was no evidence that Mrs F’s personal hygiene or
nutritional needs were being met or that the care plans were implemented.

| recommended that the Health Board should reflect on the failings identified and provide confirmation
of the further action taken to address the inadequacies in the hospital’s procedures and operational
policies, to improve its staff awareness of DVT and to ensure that early detection is promoted, to
ensure that its staff recognise deterioration in a patient’s condition, to provide adequate medical cover
support to its nursing staff and a clear pathway for referral of patients with medical needs and also to
review the availability of medical cover on the ward including out of hours and weekend cover. | also
recommended that an apology be provided for the shortcomings in the care provided to Mrs F and for
its failure to act more promptly in light of the family’s concerns.

Cwm Taf Health Board
Case reference 201001569 - Report issued August 2011

Mrs D complained about the treatment her late father, Mr A, received at the Royal Glamorgan Hospital
(“the Hospital”) in 2007 and 2008. At that time, the Hospital was the responsibility of the former Cwm
Taf NHS Trust (“the Trust”). Due to NHS re-organisation in Wales during 2009, the obligations of the
former Trust now lie with the Cwm Taf Local Health Board (“the LHB”). Mrs D said that the Hospital did
not properly investigate, diagnose or treat Mr A, during two admissions in late 2007 and early 2008.
The admissions were soon after Mr A had received successful surgery and radiotherapy to treat a
rectal tumour. They resulted from general but undiagnosed ill health. Mr A sadly died in January 2008,
whilst in the Hospital, due to shock caused mainly by a gastric ulcer. Mrs D stated that the Hospital

did not diagnose that Mr A had a pelvic abscess during his first admission, noting that his post mortem
concluded that this was a contributory factor in his death. She maintained that during the second
admission, the gastric ulcer should have been identified and treated. She also complained that a drug
had not been administered properly. Mrs D also expressed dissatisfaction with the Trust’s complaint
handling. She asserted that the former Chief Executive should not have signed the complaint response,
as a clinician involved in Mr A’s care was a close relative of hers. Mrs D also said that the Trust’s
complaint response to her mother did not deal with all the issues.



| did not uphold the complaint about the first admission. However, | found serious failings with regard
to the second admission. | found that there was no systematic approach to diagnosing Mr A’s condition,
no plan about when clinical reviews should take place and no decision made about the frequency that
nursing staff should record observations for Mr A. In the event, a doctor did not review Mr A the day
before his death and observations were not sufficient or carried out properly. Had those failings not
occurred, the problem with Mr As undiagnosed gastric ulcer might have come to light. | concluded
that there was a chance that had that happened, the sad outcome might have been different. | also
found that Mrs D was right about the poor administration of a drug. | concluded that the former

Chief Executive should not have signed the complaint response without informing the family of

the connection between her and a clinician who had been involved in Mr As care, even though that
clinician was not criticised in his report.

| made numerous recommendations to the LHB, which it has accepted. These included paying £1500 to
Mrs D as an acknowledgement of the uncertainty she has to live with concerning whether her father
might have survived the episode with better care; providing evidence that effective systems are in
place regarding nursing observations; carrying out an audit to ensure that patients requiring daily clinical
reviews are receiving them; and introducing a written conflict of interest policy.

Hywel Dda Health Board

Case reference 201002404 - Report issued August 2011

Ms P complained that her late mother, Mrs P, was inappropriately discharged home from Bronglais
Hospital in Aberystwyth in February 2008; that communication with her about her mother’s condition
was poor; and that the Health Board did not robustly investigate her complaints or provide her with a
reasonable and timely response. Sadly, Mrs P died within hours of being discharged home.

| found that Mrs P had suffered marked falls in her oxygen saturations (a measure of respiration
efficiency) during the two nights before she was discharged. While the first fall was reported to the
doctors the next day, there was no evidence that they were notified of the second fall, or that other
abnormalities in Mrs P’s pulse and blood pressure were recognised or acted on,

| concluded that given Mrs P’s abnormal observations, she should not have been discharged when
she was. | also found that communication with Ms P about her mother’s condition was poor, in
part because of the failure to recognise the abnormal observations. | upheld these parts of Ms P’s
complaint.

Turning to the handling of Ms P's complaint, | was concerned that the process became protracted, and
that there were some unavoidable delays. | also noted that the Health Board’s internal investigations
had not identified any concerns about the lack of response to Mrs P’s abnormal observations. | also
upheld this complaint.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

| recommended that the Health Board apologise to Ms P and pay her £100 in recognition of the time
and trouble she had been put to in pursuing her complaint. | also made recommendations aimed at
improving responses to abnormal observations and record keeping on the ward concerned. The Health
Board has agreed to implement my recommendations.

Hywel Dda Health Board
Case reference 201000665 - Report issued June 2011

Mr C complained about his follow-up care from the Health Board after he had been diagnosed with
cancer of the prostate. His active monitoring treatment plan ought to have involved 3 monthly check-
up appointments from November 2008, with a repeat biopsy at 12 months. He said that he received

no follow-up appointment until over a year later (when he enquired about the biopsy appointment in
December 2009). When seen, his cancer had advanced. Mr C complained that a timely appointment
would have meant the cancer’s advancement being noticed earlier and an active treatment regime
would have begun sooner. He was dissatisfied with the Health Board's response to his complaint feeling
no adequate explanation had been given about the lack of follow-up care.

The investigation uncovered serious failures, including that the Health Board’s Urology service at the
relevant time had an appointment backlog of over 11 months; no effective or urgent action was taken
to address the increasing backlog within that time; there were no written procedures for appointment
making which was a function of the medical records department; ineffective liaison between the
medical records department and clinical staff with no system of prioritising those patients in need of
urgent follow-up appointments (such as Mr C who had a cancer diagnosis requiring close monitoring);
and a consequential breach of NICE clinical guidance.

All the shortcomings had severe consequences for Mr C. | was very critical of these fundamental
failings which | felt called into question the Health Board's governance and potentially placed more
patients at risk. In addition to making the circumstances known to Health Inspectorate Wales to
monitor the Health Board’s future appointment arrangements, | made a number of recommendations,
including: an apology and redress of £3000 to Mr C for the failures and distress caused to him; a review
of its appointments system across all specialties; an action plan to address the issue of timely follow-
up appointments; and, accompanying written procedures regarding appointment booking. The Health
Board agreed to implement all the recommendations.



Housing

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Case reference 200902138 - Report issued June 2011

Ms As complaints concerned how the Council dealt with her housing applications and the affordability
of her current temporary accommodation. In early 2000, when Ms A was a private sector tenant, she
applied to the Council for housing. She said that she had made a number of contacts with Housing
Services over the years to try and progress her applications and had raised issues of overcrowding,
disrepair and anti-social behaviour. Ms A complained about the length of time she had been waiting

to be offered a Council house, particularly as the Council had accepted that it owed her a full
homelessness duty in November 2004. Ms A was placed in temporary accommodation from June 2009.
She complained that she was not made aware that the charge for her accommodation was likely to
increase as a result of funding changes.

The investigation found serious shortcomings in the way that the Council dealt with Ms A’s
homelessness and housing applications. Although the Council accepted that it had a homelessness
duty towards Ms A, there was no evidence that she was formally offered temporary accommodation
before June 2009. The Council subsequently misfiled her homelessness application and it was

not progressed for a period of four and a half years. In addition, the Council repeatedly failed to
consider all of the available information relevant to Ms As housing applications in accordance with

its Allocations Policy. This led to her not being offered a Council property in September 2005. The
investigation also uncovered serious deficiencies in the Council’s record keeping. Whilst recognising
the Council’s later efforts to minimise the impact on applicants of increased charges for its temporary
accommodation, | felt that the Council should have had greater regard, at an earlier stage, to its
Homelessness Strategy. This was particularly relevant for working applicants who might not qualify
for housing benefit. | found systemic maladministration. | recommended that the Council apologise to
Ms A and her family for its failings, and offer her a redress payment of £1500. | also made a number of
recommendations for further action by the Council, including the production of up-to-date written
procedures on housing allocations and homelessness and further training for relevant officers.

Wrexham County Borough Council
Case reference 201002076 - Report issued February 2012

| received a complaint from Mr S about Wrexham County Borough Council (“the Council”). Mr S is

a disabled single person, who lives with his mother, a council tenant. Due to mobility difficulties,
generally he is confined to a bedroom at the property. He said that the bedroom is in a state of
disrepair and that despite complaining about the disrepair for some time, no repairs had been done.
Mr S said that his mother’s council house is not adapted and is unsuitable for his needs. He complained
that he had applied for housing “Over 10 years ago” yet the Council’s records only show that his first
application was made in July 2007. Mr S said that, as a regular wheelchair user, he has been offered
properties that are unsuitable for his needs. He believed that the Council had failed to fulfil its



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

statutory responsibilities, as it did not appear to have a separate “Disabled Persons Housing List”.

My investigation found evidence of systemic failures in the Council’s approach to handling Mr S's
application for housing. The Council failed to follow relevant legislation, statutory guidance and its own
policies and procedures on a number of occasions. Poor record keeping compounded the failings.

| recommended that the Council should apologise to Mr S for the identified failings; pay him

£1500 as redress; and thoroughly re-assesses his housing application and homelessness status. | also
recommended that the Council should train all housing staff, on the recognition of homelessness and
identifying when inquiries must commence. The Council should apologise to Mrs G for the delays in
dealing with the disrepair and ensure that the repairs to the property are now completed.

In addition, | recommended that the Council should:

» review the Housing Department’s procedures to ensure that they fully and properly reflect legislation
and statutory guidance;

» review the Department’s systems to ensure that it is able to match housing applications from
disabled people effectively and appropriately to suitable properties;

» review the Department’s record keeping methods, to ensure that the records maintained comply
with the Data Protection Act; and

» review the Department’s communication and information sharing mechanisms, to ensure that lessons
learnt contribute to an improvement in the service provided.

Lastly, | recommended that the Council should consider adopting the Model Complaints Policy and
Guidance issued by the Welsh Government in July 2011.

Carmarthenshire County Council

Case 201001198 — Report issued January 2012

Mr M complained that the Council had allocated him a property in 2008 which it subsequently stated
could not be adapted to meet his needs. Mr M is disabled and the Council had been fully aware of his
needs prior to allocating the property to him. The Council advised Mr M to apply for a transfer to a more
suitable property, but Mr M did not wish to move again as he and his family had become settled there.

Mr M had requested internal adaptations to the property (the fitting of a stairlift and a walk-in shower),
and work to improve the external access. The Council stated that the external adaptations were not
feasible and would not meet Mr M’s needs. It therefore carried out no adaptations to the property

for over three years until it reassessed Mr M's needs following Mr M’s complaint to my office in 2011. It
then agreed to carry out all the adaptations requested.

| found maladministration in the allocation process and throughout Mr M’s request for adaptations at
the property. There had been no occupational therapy assessment of the property prior to allocation
to Mr M, nor was there a full assessment of Mr M’s needs for adaptations by either an occupational

therapist or social services for over three years after he had moved into the property. The Council did



not appear to recognise its statutory social care duties to Mr M, or that his human rights may have been
engaged. | upheld Mr M’s complaint and made a number of recommendations including an apology to
Mr M and a payment of £3000.

Social Services

Cardiff County Council
Case reference 201002439 — Report issued February 2012

Mrs L complained to me about the manner in which Cardiff Council handled a referral made to its
social services department under Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA) arrangements. The referral,
which was raised by hospital staff when Mrs L's husband was admitted to the hospital related to
concerns about the manner in which he had been allowed to develop the most severe grade of
pressure sore. Prior to admission Mr L, who suffered from MS and was bed-ridden was being cared for
at home by Mrs L and his carers whilst District Nurses managed his pressure sores. Mrs L was concerned
that the POVA arrangements had failed to investigate the concerns expressed and failed to investigate
discrepancies in the evidence provided by district nurses at POVA meetings. She was also concerned
about the manner in which the Council dealt with her complaint about the matter.

| upheld the complaint finding that the consideration of the referral by the POVA meetings was
inadequate and that their findings were unsustainable and should be set aside. I also upheld Mrs Ls
complaint about the manner in which the Council had considered Mrs L's complaint both in terms
of its timeliness and in relation to the substance of its response. | recommended redress to Mrs L

in recognition of her time and trouble in pursuing her complaint. I also made a number of further
recommendations to the Council; a review to ensure no other service users are at risk; an audit of
referrals which accused NHS staff of abuse or neglect to ensure that these have been properly dealt
with and; a reconsideration of the original investigation to correct the record and ensure that all
relevant lessons have been learned.




mbudsman __

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Annex B

Public Body Complaints

Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by
Public Body Complaints Investigated



141 1 €€ 8L 8 891 (413 ul V10l
0§ ! ! 8 Sl Sl 6 WRYXIIM
14 L l L 8 l ¢ U9BJI0]
(41 [4 ! Ll 4! 9 uedIoWe|) JO 9)ep YL
89S 4 S 14 0t L BISUBMS
¥s [ 14 9l 8t ¥ JeL UoUA) eppuoyy
[43 { ¢ 6 Il L SAmod
8¢ L 14 0t 6 b 2111Y59401qUlDd
(114 L [ [ [ S ¢ 1odmaN
L§ L L L 6 6l 9 10q|e| 104 YiesN
8¢ L l 4l 0t 14 2I1YSYINOWUO
91 ¢ 14 L 8 YPAL JAYUBW
67 | 4 ¢ | 9 ol ¢ Aosaj3uy JO S|
6€ [ S 8 il 9 ppauimo
9¢ L ¢ { ¢l ¢l {4 ad1ysunld
I3 [ b | Il [l | alysy3iquaq
144 (4 9 6 S AmuoD
4 [ L [ 6 ol 4 uoi3ipasa)
79 4 L S 74 6l L odlySUsypiellIe)
06 L 6 8 [T [43 4l HIpie)
bs ! S 0t I 9 Alydiae)
Ji4 l ¢ 8 u { puadpug
8 l 7 ¢ L L JUIME) NeUdR|g
yied yied UOI)RIAPISUOD
U0 dOYM | UIIO|OYM | JUBWI|IIAS |eniun Ja3je
paso)) PlaydnioN-| ui-piaydn| w-pjaydn|  Aseyunjop paso)) sased uondIpsunf
sase) |ejoL | umelpyiip | Moday JayaQ | Moday a0 | -Moday 91|  /xiddPINY | panunuodsiq Jag0,|  amjewayd jonQ| puno) ySnosog Ayuno)/Auno)

STIONNOD HONOYOY ALNNOD/ALNNOD




81

1L

ALNOHINV TVO01
Y3IHLO, TVIOL TIVHIAO

wi0l

pJeog
a8eurei( [eUIRIU| PUB|SAMO

spieog a3eureiq

10l

100UPS JoIUN( g JURyY|
[epay3e) SYdasof 35 JO SI0UIA00

|00Y2S Aleuitld ppAMBUAL

uduUQ ukig |08sa

|00Y2S Y3IH joodysja

- g p— | -

100US JuBjY|
J1j0y3e) urWOY Sydasof 35

|00LPS YSIH udysiuey]

100YdS
LOI1BPUNOH JMBLLUAIG

100YS Y3IH J41pie)

J00y2S Y3IH ued|uy
pUe d1j0y3e) 5ydasof 1S

sjaued sjeaddy
SUOISSIWPY S|00YdS

10l

BILOPMOLS

15RO AUIYSHOIQUIDY

MO (O

~ | = e

SU0JRAg UOJAIG

Sa13LI0Y3NY }ed |euoLeN

pasop

sase) |ejoL

UMBIPYIM

P13ydn 10N -
yoday Jay30

yied

u1 10 3)oym
ut - pjaydn
yoday Jay30

yed

ul 10 3joym
ut - pjaydn
- yioday 91§

JUWRIAS
Kreyunjop
/X4pInY

panuuodsiq

UOI)RIIPISUOD
enul 123y
paso)> sased
4340,

aInjewalq

uonIpsun

f3uoyiny 8307 42430

ALNOHLNV TVDO01¥3H1O




=r
o~

£l

10l

AJUNWILIOY) SUSABH dy |

UMO] SIE3)) 1S

Anunuiuio?) Joleyy sopug 1S

Auunwwo) 19130y

AJUNWWIOY) UOMIAD

UMO] YINOLWUOK

ANUNWILOY) USBJSATT

AHUNWWOY) JUBSLIUR)

AJUNWILIOY) UBYJDISUL|T

Ajunwiuiod) ueuuesue)]

AyunwwIo?) Jay3IH uelpIyJue)

UMO] oupnpue|]

UMOL 5|19\ POPULIPUE]T

ANUNWWO) J0IMoppue|]

Ayunwwo?) unemiiy

AJUNWILIO) YUy UAIAQ

AUUNWWOY JUamIar)

AjNunwwo) ueppuoyuae|g

—_— | — | — |~

umao| suewneag

UMO] y3nouieg

p— - ey v e - - = (= ey (= (= ey |-

(11ys3un4) Auunwiwo?) paodiy

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMBIPYIM

P13ydn 10N -
yoday Jay30

yied

u1 10 3)oym
ut - pjaydn
yoday Jay30

yed

ul 10 3joym
ut - pjaydn
- yioday 91§

JUWRIAS
Kreyunjop
/X4pInY

panuuodsiq

UOI)RIIPISUOD
enul 123y
paso)> sased
4340,

aInjewalq

uoRaIpsun(
jong

112un0) umol /Ajunwwo)

STIDNNOD NMOL/ALINNWWOD




UIYSYINOWUO

SAWIOH SAD) 1A JAYLIaW

SIWOH Ul

NIWAY-dUnN

uisnoH pojeH

°le7) pojeH

oY) 18414

(So]eAn) UONIBIDOSSY JUISNOH A]1LUe4

Je] uouk)

NSENL]

BuIsnoH |eiseo)

unly pAmp

3uisnoH Japrey)

ppauAmo) jopaunwiA) yaipe)

—_— e~ | —|—

Amuo) yaiue)

Anunwiwo) Jipied

ukmpe)

AjunwIWO?) uoyy uosg

Oy ™ (N (e Oy (S s 0N T e

~N|~N— |||~~~ ||~ —|—|— || ||~

UIppIAN 0.g

yred yred UOI)RIAPISUOD
ULIOJJOYM | UIJIOJOYM| JUBWANAS |eniul 1ayje
paso)) PlaydnioN-| ui-piaydn| w-pjaydn|  Aseyunjop paso)) sased uondIpsunf (uoryerdossy Suisnoy)
sase) |ejoL | umelpyiip | Moday JayaQ | Moday a0 | -Moday 91|  /xiddPINY | panunuodsiq Jaylo,|  anjewald jong piojpueT |enos paiaisiday

SQYOTANVTTVIDOS AIYILSIOTY




81l

144

0s

i0l

HIPIED YOWA

=t
-

1S3 pUEB S3)BA

— | [ —

1580") 03 SA3)|_A

Ys|ap paaun

uoI3IpaIR) ey

uoje) 1B

EppUOLy

Jiedoy pue 1) Je| uouk) eppuoyy

[4

SaWOoH 10y

!

SOWOH 1dN

O (M| NN D

4

Lo B o B i B

SaWoH A1) Lodman

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMBIPYIM

P13ydn 10N -
yoday Jay30

ued
U1 10 3joym
ut - pjaydn

yoday Jay30

yed

ul 10 3joym
ut - pjaydn

- yioday 91§

juaw)iag

Kreyunjop
/X4pInY

panuuodsiq

UOI)RIIPISUOD
enul 123y
paso)> sased
4340,

aInjewalq

uoRaIpsun(
jong

(uoryerdossy Suisnoy)
piojpue je1os pasaisiday

(Panunuod) SQYOTANYT TVIDOS AIYILSIOIY




96€ L 1€ [4] oL 8s 8 L6 91l I} V101
£l 14 [4 14 [4 L 18N
SHN SeDIAISS DURINGUIY YSIBAL
€ ¢ 3SNIL SHN JpUlPA
[4 L L S3JEM Y3feeH J1iqnd
9l [ L [ 14 14 [ L sAmod
€S L ¢ ¢ [4 6 L pl 6l L Bpq |omAH
14} L £ 14 £ L L S bl 4 JeL WMD)
¥9 L 9 4 0L el [ L gH AYSI9AIUN 9]_A PUE JIpIeD)
16 4 L Ll ! 17 ! 14 17 L PEEMPE) 15109
6 L 14 6 l 9 0t 9l { pIeog U} [eaH UrASg ULIN3UY
09 L 9 8 L 6 L i 0t 4 p1e0g U3|esH ANSISAIUN
3muUR3ION 01 dMRLIIQY

yred yred UOI)RIAPISUOD

ULIO3)OYM | UIIODJOUM | JUAWI)IAS |eniul Jayye

paso)) PlaydnioN-| ui-piaydn| w-pjaydn|  Aseyunjop paso)) sased uondIpsunf

sase) |ejol |  umelpydp | yioday JayaQ | Moday JayaQ | -yoday 9ls|  /xidPId | panunuodsiq Jag0,|  amjewayd jomgQ ¥sniL/gH1

SAQYVO4L HLTVIH TVOOT ANV S1SNYL SHN




L oL £l L 44 14! 14 101
1 ! 1SDILLRYY
1 | uepndo
| ! Apejempe)
15394 - |1PUNOY) Y3[PaH ANUNWILIO)
0s 8 u ! 9 3 d9
1T L ! L L 9 L 1susd

yred yred UOI)RIAPISUOD

ULIOJJOYM | UIJIOJOYM| JUBWANAS |eniul 1ayje

paso)) PlaydnioN-| ui-piaydn| w-pjaydn|  Aseyunjop paso)) sased uondIpsunf

sase) |ejoL | umespylim | oday 1ayiQ | Moday JayaQ | -1oday 9is|  /xi4opInd | panunuodsiq Jayi0,  aumewaid joIng Apog y1jeay

$31Q049 HL1V3H ¥3H1O




09

144

61

$31009 AIYOSNOJS
SLI ANV INJWNYIA0D
HSTIM TVLOL TIV¥3A0

10l

(MD43H) s21eM 104
112UNo) 3uIpun4 UoIIedNP3 J3y3IH

S3[BA 104 |1PUNOY) BPISAIIUN)

S3]eA 404 |PUNOY) 31e)

salpog
paiosuods JuawuIaA09 Ys|aM

85

{14

]

10l

93HWIWO)
SDIALDS PasI|eInads yi[eaH YS|op

JUILILIDAOS) USIOM

1e1010adsu) duluueld

AoUuaBy peoy Juni Sa1BA PIW

1elIel210a§ Melhay Hcoﬁcmam_u:_

— =y

1RLIRIZNG
sjute|dwio?) uspuadapu

S9]BAA UOISSILILIOY) U3 [BaH

MISSD

Ll

SSY24YD

JUWIUIAA0Y YS|IM

yed

yed

UOI)RIIPISUOD

u1 10 3)oym
ut - pjaydn
yoday Jay30

u1 10 2)oym
ut - pjaydn
- Jioday 91§

JUWRIAS
Kreyunjop
/X4pInY

enul 123y
paso) sased
P

salpog palosuods JuawuIaA09
YS|3M PUB JUSWILIAA0Y YS|IM

uoRaIpsun(
jong

P13ydn 10N -
yoday Jay30

pasop

sase) |ejoL aInjewalq

panuuodsiq

UMBIPYIM

S31409 ATUYOSNOLS LNIWNYIAOD HSTIM ANV LNIWNYIAOD HSTIM



10l

pappap Ajsnoiaaid
J0U - uoIRIpsUN( ur you Apog

AV ERIIEN
JUBLLSSSSY [RIIUI|D) |eUOIIeN

9B
104 Jeunqi]. Auadold e1uspISSYy

NALS3

L

AoUady JuawuoIALg

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMBIPYIM

P13ydn 10N -
yoday Jay30

yied

u1 10 3)oym
ut - pjaydn
yoday Jay30

yed

ul 10 3joym
ut - pjaydn
- yioday 91§

JUWRIAS
Kreyunjop
/X4pInY

panuuodsiq

UOI)RIIPISUOD
enul 123y
paso)> sased
4340,

aInjewalq

uoRaIpsun(
jong

1RY0

Y3IH1O




mbudsman __

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Annex C

Code of Conduct Complaints:
Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Local Authority



891

10l

WYX

uoeI0|

uegIoWwe)s) JO e dyL

POSUBMS

JB] uouA) eppuoyy

sAmog

AIYSNOIqUI

HodmaN

10 HOd Y1eaN

AAYSYINOWILOW

|YPAL JAyHaN

£3s9)3uy JO 9|

e~ (M~ | |0 O

ppauimo

IYSIUI4

a1ysydiquaq

Amuo)

uoig1pas)

UIYSUSYHBLLIEY

HIpie)

Aydiae)

puagplig

WM 00 (WO (0O = O O

= | (O ||~ |= |Os | [0 |

JUDME) NRUSR|G

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMeIpYIIM

|oued
uonedipnipy
0} 13J3Y

39))1Wwo)
spiepuejs
01 13j3y

Alessadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 3DU3PIA3 ON

panuiuodsiq

UOI}RIAPISUOD
enul 123y
pasop)

112uno) ynoiog fyuno)/£Kyuno)

STIONNOD HONOYOY ALNNOD/ALNNOD




Ayunwuwio)) Aepy

ANUNWILIOD) INOYIAA S30|PIUe]]

Ajunwiwio?) Jomo pAmuAdue)

(= -

Aunwwo?)
JeydIg usejeyieyy Jrejuel]

ANunwwo?) (ppauAmo)) Jrejuel

Ajunwiwo?) paue)

UMOL S|}9M POPULIPUR]]

Lo T I o B o I

Ajunwiwo)) eidapuey

Lol BN o T o B

Aunwwo?)
1904 A pAYY pue sejnppuey

ANUNWIWIOY) U0

umoy Ajjampry

umo] peayAjoH

Ajunwwo) 3))As1omo)

Uumao| uoulesioL)

Ajunwwo?) uap.od

Ajunwiwo) yuy ukiyAg

= = ey == |-

—_—|—_—— |~ |—|—

Ayunwiwio?)
JoqAjey L e Ampnpay ukiAg

AunwILoy [juAwm)

Auunwwo?) yisodpao)

Anunwiwo) yoepA)D

umoy A)ydise)

UMO] |eAOY UOJIRUIDED

UMo| A9ppng

UMO] U0221g

Ll R e TR s B s Bl

UMO| POOMYJe|g

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMeIpYIIM

|oued
uonedipnipy
0} 13J3Y

39))1Wwo)
spiepuejs
01 13j3y

Alessadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 3DU3PIA3 ON

panuiuodsiq

UOI}RIAPISUOD
enul 123y
pasop)

112un0) umol /Ajunwwo)

STIDNNOD NMOL /ALINNWWOD




9slL

61

101

3Unayy pelisy

ANUNWWIOY) INJ4 PRIISA

AJunWwWIo)) 210

AHUNWWIOY Paun Ya9]124L

UMO| Aeg |awury g UAMOL

Apunwwo) A)ng

AJUNWWOY) UOULBH 1S

Auunwiwo) Joleyy sapug s

A1UNWIWOY) SUPALY 1§

umo] uopoys

AUUNWIWOY SIISIS USASS

umo] Aduyes

UMO] Iy

—|———|— |~ |~ o~

umo] 1Ayy

Aunwiwio) a)A4

87

UMO| UAIRISR.d

UMO] |MBIYIIOJ

ANUNWIWOY) YA

Ajunwiwio) e pue ppAuAwWURy

[an]

UMO] JMRLLIUSRLIURY

ANUNWWIOY) BUUR)|O

UMO] LLIBIBLDAM]|UE|T S UMOIMIN

ANUNWILIOY) S3)qUINy

UMO] PO

ANUNWIWOY) J21GIOURYY

Ayunwiwio) Apun yum Jodepy

I—l—h—mm—ﬁm—ﬂnwol——l——ﬂI—Q\I—Mu—wu—l—
—

— |— || | ™

UMO] 32158y

paso))
sase) |ejoL

UMeIpYIIM

|oued
uonedipnipy
0} 13J3Y

39))1Wwo)
spiepuejs
01 13j3y

Alessadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 3DU3PIA3 ON

panuiuodsiq

UOI}RIAPISUOD
enul 123y
pasop)

112un0) umol /Ajunwwo)

(Panu13uod) STDNNOI NMOL /ALINNWWO)D




14 14 101
£ ¢ RILOPMOUS
91 9l 2UIYSM0IqUIY
(4 7 SUOJBAgG U0JAIG
|oueq 32))1Wwo) UOIJRIAPISU0)
paso)) uonedpnipy spiepuejs K1essadau yoeaiq Jenui sayge
sase) |ejoL UMBIPYIM 0} 13J3y 01 13j3y UOIDBON| JODUIPIAAON|  panuiuodsiq paso)) Ayoyyny sieq jeuoneN

SIILRIOHLNY MY¥Vd TVYNOILVN




Annex D

Extract from Strategic Plan 2009/10 to 2011/12
Vision, Values, Purposes and Strategic Aims




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs IS

Our vision

» To contribute to the development of excellent public services in Wales by ensuring that service
providers continue to value and learn from complaints.

Our values

» Accessibility — to be open to everyone from all of our communities and work to ensure that people
who face challenges in access are not excluded. We will be courteous, respectful and approachable,
and communicate with complainants in the way they tell us they prefer,

» Excellence — to be professional and authoritative in all that we do and promote excellence in the
services with which we work

» Learning — we believe that we should improve through learning from our own experiences and
should help others to learn from theirs

» Fairness — we will maintain our independence and reach decisions objectively having carefully
considered the facts

» Effectiveness — we will make sure that we use resources to secure best value for the public purse
» Being good employers — we will continue to invest in our well trained and well motivated staff.

Our Purposes
» To consider complaints about public bodies
» To consider complaints that members of local authorities have broken the code of conduct

» To put things right — we aim to put people back in the position they would have been in if they had
not suffered an injustice, and work to secure the best possible outcome where injustice has occurred

» To recognise and share good practice
» To work with public bodies so that lessons from our investigations are learnt

» To ensure continued improvement in the standards of public services in Wales by helping bodies to
get it right first time — we will work to reduce complaints by helping service providers to improve
their initial decision making.

Strategic Aims

Strategic Aim 1: To raise awareness of our service so that people understand what we do, and that all
who need it can access it and make use of it.

Strategic Aim 2: To have in place high quality complaints handling processes, which consider and
determine complaints thoroughly but proportionately, and convey decisions clearly.

Strategic Aim 3: To work with public bodies in Wales so that better quality public services are
provided as a result of the lessons that can be learnt from the complaints we investigate.

Strategic Aim 4: To demonstrate that our resources are efficiently and effectively deployed.



Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF355L)

Tel: 01656 641150

Fax: 01656 641199

E-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk
Follow us on Twitter: @OmbudsmanWales

This document is printed on 100% recycled paper. It is available
for downloading from the website: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

o II——



Agenda Item 7

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 3 - Senedd Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Meeting date: Thursday, 21 June 2012 ,
National
Assembly for
Meeting time: 09:30 - 10:36 Wales

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: *'F’
http: //www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf2v=en_400000_21_06_2012&t=0&|=en /

Concise Minutes:

Ann Jones (Chair)

Assembly Members: .
v Janet Finch-Saunders

Mark Isherwood
Bethan Jenkins
Gwyn R Price
Ken Skates
Joyce Watson

Witnesses:

Leanne Hatcher (Deputy Clerk)

i ff:
Committee Sta P Gareth Williams (Clerk)

Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor)

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions

1.1 The Chair welcomed Alun Ffred Jones and Kirsty Williams who were substituting
for Rhodri Glyn Thomas and Peter Black respectively, given their roles on the
Assembly Commission.

1.2 The Chair also welcomed Mark Drakeford who was substituting for Mike Hedges.
1.3 The Chair welcomed Rhodri Glyn Thomas who was attending to participate in
Stage 2 proceedings of the National Assembly for Wales (Official Languages) Bill,

in his capacity as an Assembly Commissioner and the Member in Charge of the
Bill.

Page 73



2. National Assembly for Wales (Official Languages) Bill - Stage 2:
Consideration of Amendments

2.1 The Chair said that the Committee would consider the amendments in the
following order:

Section 1 - 3.

2.2 The Committee disposed of the following amendments:

Section 1:

Amendment 1A (Suzy Davies) was not moved.

Amendments 1, 2 and 3 (Rhodri Glyn Thomas) were agreed to, in accordance with
Standing Order 17.34 (i).

Section 2:

Amendment 11 (Bethan Jenkins) was withdrawn, in accordance with Standing Order
26.66 (i).

Amendment 13 (Suzy Davies):

For Against Abstain
Janet Finch-Saunders | Mark Drakeford 0
Mark Isherwood Alun Ffred Jones
Bethan Jenkins
Gwyn Price
Ken Skates

Joyce Watson
Kirsty Williams

2 7 0

Amendment 13 was not agreed to.

Amendment 16 (Aled Roberts):

For Against Abstain
Mark Drakeford Janet Finch-Saunders | O
Alun Ffred Jones Mark Isherwood
Bethan Jenkins
Gwyn Price
Ken Skates

Joyce Watson
Kirsty Williams

7 2 0

Amendment 16 was agreed to.

Amendment 17 (Aled Roberts):

Page 74



For

Against

Abstain

Mark Drakeford
Alun Ffred Jones

Janet Finch-Saunders
Mark Isherwood

Bethan Jenkins
Gwyn Price
Ken Skates
Joyce Watson
Kirsty Williams

7 2 0

Amendment 17 was agreed to.

Amendment 18 (Aled Roberts) was not moved.

Amendment 19 (Aled Roberts):

For Against Abstain

Alun Ffred Jones Janet Finch-Saunders | O
Bethan Jenkins Mark Isherwood
Kirsty Williams Mark Drakeford
Gwyn Price

Ken Skates
Joyce Watson

3 6 0

Amendment 19 was not agreed to.

Amendments 20 and 21 (Aled Roberts) were not moved.
Amendment 4A (Bethan Jenkins) was not moved.

Amendment 4 (Rhodri Glyn Thomas) was agreed to, in accordance with Standing
Order 17.34 (i).

Amendment 12 (Bethan Jenkins) was not moved.

Amendment 5 (Rhodri Glyn Thomas) was agreed to, in accordance with Standing
Order 17.34 (i).

Amendment 14 (Suzy Davies), was withdrawn in accordance with Standing Order
26.66 (i).
Amendments 6 and 7 (Rhodri Glyn Thomas) were agreed to, in accordance with

Standing Order 17.34 (i).

Amendment 15 (Suzy Davies) was withdrawn, in accordance with Standing Order
26.66 (i).

Page 75



Section 3: No amendments were tabled to this section, therefore it was deemed agreed
to.

2.3 The Bill, as amended was deemed agreed.

2.4 The Committee requested that the Commissioner, prepare a revised Explanatory
Memorandum, in accordance with Standing Order 26.27.

2.5 The Chair informed the Committee that Stage 3 proceedings would begin on Friday
22 June 2012.

3. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business: Item 4
3.1 The Committee agreed the motion.

4. Legislative Consent Memorandum on the Local Government Finance
Bill: Agreement of Report

4.1 The Committee considered and agreed the report. The Chair said that the report
would be laid before the Assembly by Monday 25 June 2012.

5. Papers to note

5.1 Paper 1 - Submission from BBC Wales for the Inquiry into the Welsh Premier football
league

Page 76



Agenda Iltem 7a

CELG(4) WPL 27
Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

Inquiry into the Welsh Premier League

Response from ITV Wales

Wales

National Assembly for Wales’ Communities, Equality & Local Government
Committee Consultation on Welsh Premier League

Response from ITV Wales

ITV Wales’ flagship news programme Wales Tonight provides
comprehensive and nightly coverage of Welsh sport with our Sports
Correspondent Richard Morgan. We also provide up-to-the minute Welsh
sports news on ITV’s new “live stream” news website www.itv.com/wales.

Our main sports coverage concentrates on international rugby and football,
league club football, regional rugby and any other newsworthy Welsh sporting
event or competition.

The position on the Welsh Premiership is that, due to the time constraints of a
live news programme, we tend not to cover the league on a regular basis.
Responding to viewer demand, the priority in our football coverage is for
Wales’ league clubs, Swansea and Cardiff, plus Wrexham and Newport in the
Bluesquare Bet Premier.

The exception would be European competition, when we tend to carry the
results of the Welsh Premiership clubs.

We have in the past also provided detailed coverage of 'one-off' events - for
example when a Welsh side takes on a major European team in the
Champions' League, or when covering business dealings of one of the clubs.

To conclude, whilst we will always seek to cover the Welsh Premiership when
newsworthy, we are unable to commit to giving regular updates on fixtures
and results.

Huw Rossiter,
Public Affairs Manager
ITV Wales

huw.rossiter@itv.com

Page 77



Agenda Item 7b

Cardiff
There is a 3G pitch at Llys tal y bont but this is a training pitch and 3/4 size.

Power leagues and Gol centre playing surface is 3G albeit small sided
football, we are also developing small sided 3G pitches across some of our
Park sites.

We have developed a specific football strategy for Cardiff, "growing the
game" to look at full size provision in partnership with the FAW Trust and
will hopefully have our first full size 3G at the University Playing Fields,
Llanrumney as a joint initiative between the University, FAW and Cardiff
Council this year after the Olympic football has moved off site.

Planning for the 3 G investment will need to consider different operating
models which could include School sites, Parks and Voluntary/Private
partnerships.

In the Autumn WLGA,WG ,Sports Wales and Chief Leisure officers are running
a seminar and one of the topic areas will be 3G and the results so far based
on Caerphilly . We are looking to invite the Minister for Culture ,Sport and
Heritage.

The main outcome for us is to centre the 3G around a robust club model to
increase, improve and sustain participation whilst also considering
decommissioning of grass football pitches to make the future saving and
efficiency targets for Parks and Sport. The income model may also help
support and sustain the Sporting Hub model as they come on stream.

Monmouthshire
1 X 3G to be installed at Caldicot, the facility will be in place for the autumn
of 2012.

Ynys Mon
1 X 3G Pitch in Amlwch Leisure Centre.

Newport
1 X 3G in partnership with the FAW which opens in the next few weeks at
the Newport Sports Village.

Flintshire

7 X small 3G pitches approximately 20m x 30m . Two clubs are in the early
stages of looking into the potential of building a full size 3G pitch but both
are a few years away.

Blaenau Gwent

1 X 3G pitch (graded 2 star) at Abertillery Sports Centre in partnership with
the FAW

Page 78



1 X 3G will be developed as a part of the new sports complex on the Works
site in Ebbw Vale and this facility is likely to be completed by September
2013 in preparation for the 2013/14 winter season.

Carmarthen
Indoor Training barn with 3G training area at Parc Y Scarlets
Indoor Training Barn with 3G training area at Carmarthen Athletic RFC

Possibly another indoor 3G barn in Ammanford, on site of Leisure Centre /
Comp school

Possibly an outdoor 3G pitch as part of a potential new build leisure complex
in Llanelli to replace the existing Leisure centre

Caerphilly

1 X 3G League standard pitch at Pontllanfraith with FAW partnership
1 X 3G full size pitch at Bargoed in partnership with the FAW

1 X 3G threequarter size pitch at Newbridge

Full size league standard football and a full size rugby pitch in partnership
with FAW,WRU ,FE college £6.5m project possibly commencing 2012/2013.

Page 79



	Agenda
	3 Technical Briefing Session on Homes for Wales: A White Paper for Better Lives and Communities
	5 Inquiry into the Welsh Government's historic environment policy - Evidence session
	6 Consideration of the annual report by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 2011-12
	7 Papers to note
	7a CELG(4)-17-12 - Paper 3 - Evidence for Football inquiry - Submission from ITV Wales
	7b CELG(4) -17-12 - Paper 4 - Additional Information from the Welsh Local Government Association as evidence for the Football inquiry

